BCV SOCIAL LLC
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2024



BCV SOCIAL LLC
Index To Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

Independent Auditor's Report

Financial Statements

Balance Sheet

Statement of Income

Statement of Stockholder's Equity
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements

Page No.(s)

1-2



g P& GASSOCIATES, PLLC
Public Accounting Firm (FRM)

Regd. Office:

36, South 18th Avenue, Suite 0,
Brighton CO 80601

Admin Office:

4512 Legacy Drive Unit 100, Plano, TX
75024, USA

Tel: 001 (972)-961-4813 Fax: 001 (888)-
482-0280

Email: info@pandgassoc.com
Registration No: FRN.5000066

Independent Auditor’s Report

To

BCV Social LLC,

223 W Erie St 2NW,
Chicago, lllinois 60654.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BCV Social LLC. (the “Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as of March 31, 2024, and related statement of income, stakehaolder’s equity
and cash flow for the year then ended and related notes to financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respect, the financial
position of the company as of March 31, 2024, and the results of the operations and its cash flow for the
year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in “Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of financial statements” section of our report, we are required to be
independent of the company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit reports. We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financials statements that are from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate that raise substantial doubt about the company ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit report that include
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance but not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect material misstatements
resulting from fraud which is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion and
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation or the override of internal control. Misstatements, include
omissions are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgement made by reasonable user based on financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financials statement whether due to
fraud and error, and design and perform audit procedure responsive to those risk. Such procedure
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosure in financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedure
that are appropriate in circumstances, but not for purpose of expressing opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of significant
accounting policies used and reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluate overall presentation of financials statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are condition or events, considered in aggregate that
raise substantial doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of audit, significant audit findings and certain related internal control that we
identified during the audit.

/A‘Jﬁs\ﬁﬂ&i&

Subhgjit Guha, CPA

For P&G ASSOCIATES, PLLC

Public Accounting Firm

Firm Registration Number: 5000066
Date: 07/16/2024



BCV SOCIAL LLC
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note
Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents D
Accounts Receivables E
Other Current Assets F

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net G
Intangible Assets, Net H
Deferred Tax Asset

Total Non- Current Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities & Stockholder’s Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payables

Other Current Liabilities I
Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies J
Stockholder's Equity

Additional Paid in Capital

Retained Earnings

Total Stockholder's Equity

Total Liabilities & Stockholder's Equity

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For BC, al LEC

Dirégtor;B. Chopra

Date: 16th July 2024

March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
618,257 3,601,387
967,155 1,641,744
648,976 195,765

2,234,388 5,438,896
206,832 210,958
8,350,149 10,002,105
981,607 826,564
9,538,588 11,039,627
11,772,976 16,478,523
795,014 481,974
8,236,390 11,039,634
9,031,404 11,521,608
9,031,404 11,521,608
24,161,561 24,161,561
(21,419,989)  (19,204,646)
2,741,572 4,956,915
11,772,976 16,478,523




BCV SOCIAL LLC

Statement of Income for the year ended March 31, 2024

(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Revenue

Sale of Services
Other Income
Total Revenue

Operating Expenses

Salary and Benefits

General and Administrative expenses
Depreciation and Amortization
Total Operating Expense

Operating Loss

Tax Expenses
Net Loss

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For BCV Sg¢alALL.C

Directn{{:f./dhopra
Date: 16th July 2024

Note  nroreh31,2024  March 31,2023
M
7,443,431 10,171,252
41,956 ;
7,485,387 10,171,252
N 5,160,070 7,938,525
0 2,951,184 3,250,508
G&H 1,744,519 1,710,371
9,855,773 12,899,404
(2,370,386) (2.728,152)
(155,043) (826,314)
(2,215,343) (1,901,838)




BCV SOCIAL LLC

Statement of Stockholder's Equity

(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

T — Additional Retained Stockholder's
Paid in Capital Earnings Equity

Balance as on March 31, 2022 21,462,404 (17,302,788) 4,159,616
Additions during the year 2,699,137 < 2,699,137
Net loss for the year - (1,901,838) (1,901,838)
Balance as on March 31, 2023 24,161,561 (19,204,646) 4,956,915
Net loss for the year - (2,215,343) (2,215,343)
Balance as on_March 31, 2024 24,161,561 (21,419,989) 2,741,572

Stockholders equity consists of additional paid in capital and retained earnings. The sole Member of the company is

RateGain Technologies, Inc.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For BCY¥%&oc¢lal

Diregtor:-8. Chopra
Date:{6th July 2024




BCV SOCIAL LLC

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net Loss before tax (2,370,386) (2,728,152)
Depreciation and Amortization 1,744,519 1,710,371
Provision for doubtful debts 69,489 65,472
Trade and other receivables written off 127,918 -
Changes In Operating Assets And Liabilities
Decrese/(Increase) In Accounts Receivable 477,181 698,719
Decrease/(Increase) In Other Current Assets (453,211) 26,809
Increase In Accounts Payable 313,040 53,701
Increase in Other Current Liabilities (2,803,242) 967,594
Net Cash Used By Operating Activities (2,894,692) 794,514
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of Computer Office and Equipment (88,438) (134,826)
Net Cash Used By Investing Activities (88,438) (134,826)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Additional paid in capital - 2,699,157
Net Cash Used By Financing Activities - 2,699,157
Net Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents (2,983,130) 3,358,845
Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beginning Of Year 3,601,387 242,542
Cash And Cash Equivalents At End Of Year (Note D) 618,257 3,601,387

Cash flow statements have been prepared using Indirect method as specified in US GAAP.

The accompanyjng notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
For BC% %/

Dlrectnr\*l?v—éhopra
Date:16th July 2024




BCV SOCIAL LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note A NATURE OF OPERATIONS
The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of RateGain Technologies Inc. and its ultimate holding company is RateGain Travel Technologies
Limited("RateGain"), a SaaS company registered in India. RateGain is listed in the stock exchanges in India.

It is engaged in the business of providing data as a service, distribution and market technologies to travel and hospitality sector on a SaaS
platform.

Note B SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies are detailed below:

—

Basis of accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of

America (US GAAP) to reflect the financial position and results of operations of the Company.

The financial statements are presented for the year ended March 31, 2024. All amounts are stated in United States Dollars, unless specified
otherwise.

[

Use of Estimate

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The management's estimates for determination of useful lives for property, plant
and equipment net, provision for doubtful debts, allowance for chargebacks, discounts and rebates, and estimation relating to unsettled
transactions and events at the balance sheet date represent certain of these particularly sensitive estimates. Management believes that the
estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates'. Revisions in
accounting estimates are recognized prospecetively in the current and future periods.

(%]

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of all cash accounts which are not subject to withdrawal restrictions or penalties and all highly liquid investments with
an initial maturity of three months or less. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value because of the short maturities
of those financial instruments. Cash balances in bank accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to specified sum for
each insured bank for each account per depositor. Cash balances in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and similar insurance
coverage are subject to the usual banking risks assaciated with funds in excess of those limits.

-

Revenue Recognition
Revenue from Conlracts with Customers, revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised services to customers. Revenue is measured

at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts
collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided the
recovery of consideration is probable and determinable. Revenue from operations is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benetits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Sale of Services

Revenue from sale of services in case of hospitality sector is recognized over the specified subscription period on straight line basis or on the
basis of underlying services performed, as the case may be, in accordance with the terms of the contracts with customers. The Company defers
unearned revenue, including payments reccived in advance, until the related subscription period is complete or underlying services are
performed. Revenue from marketing support services, social media management fee and auxiliary business support services are in terms of
agreements with the customers and are recognized on the basis of satisfaction of performance obligation over the duration of the contract from
the date the contracts are effective or signed provided the consideration is reliably determinable and no significant uncertainty exists regarding
the collection. The amount recognized as revenue is net of applicable taxes.

5 Provision for Doubtful accounts
The Company follows the specific identification method for recognizing provision for doubttul accounts, Management analyses composition of
the accounts receivable aging, historical bad debts, current economic trends, risk identified and customer credit worthiness of each accounts
receivable when evaluating the adequacy of the provision for doubtful accounts. Provision for doubtful accounts is included in general and
administration expenses in the statements of income. The Company charges off bad debts against the provision in the period in which it
determines they are uncollectible.

The Company recognizes loss allowances for trade receivables with no significant financing component at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit loss ("ECL"). The changes (incremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using ECL model, are recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in the Statement of profit and loss.



BCV SOCIAL LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

6 Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
Property, plant and equipment, net, are recognized at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is generally computed using the straight-

line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, as follows:

Estimated Useful Life
Asset Name No. of years
Furniture and Fixtures 7
Computer & Office Equipment 5-7

Upon the retirement or sale of our property, plant and equipment, the cost and associated accumulated depreciation are removed from the
consolidated balance sheet, and the resulting gain or loss is reflected on the consolidated statement of operations. Maintenance and repair
expenditures are expensed as incurred while major improvements that increase the functionality, output or expected life of an assct are
capitalized and depreciated ratably over the identified useful life.

-~

Intangible Assets and Goodwill
Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Estimated Useful Life
Asset Name No. of years
Customer Relationships 12
Non-Compete 1
Database 3
Software 10
Domain Name §
Goodwill:

The company tests goodwill for impairment annually. The management conducts impairment assessment and compares the carrying amount of
goodwill with its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is computed based upon discounted cash flow projections.

8 Income Taxes
The Company with stockhalders consent has elected to be taxed as an 'Single Member LLC' under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code
and comparable state revenue tax law. As an 'Single Member LLC' the Company is generally not subject to corporate income taxes and the
Company's' net income or loss is reported on the tax return of the RateGain Technologies Inc., a holding company. Accordingly, the tax expenses
of the holding company are apportioned to the Company.

D

Fair Value Measurements and Financial Instruments

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value in the financial statements are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated with the inputs
used to measure their fair value. Hierarchical levels which are directly related to the amount of subjectivity associated with the inputs to the
valuation of these assets or liabilities are as follows:

Level 1 - unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access as of the
measurement date.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are directly observable for the asset or liability or indirectly observable
through corroboration with observable market data :

Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the assct or liability only used when there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

This hierarchy requires the Company to use observable market data, when available, and to minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
determining fair value

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The
estimated fair value of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying amounts of these
instruments. None of these instruments are held for trading purposes.



BCV SOCIAL LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

10 Commitments and Contingencies
Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments litigations, fines, penalties, and other sources are recorded when it is probable

that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated Legal costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are
expensed as incurred. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed in the financial statements,

1

iy

Recently issued accounting standards not vet adopted
We have reviewed the recent accounting pronouncements and concluded they are either not applicable to the business or no material effect is
expected on the financial statements as a result of future adoption.

12 Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is recognized as an expense in the financial statements based on the fair value of the award. The Company recognizes
compensation expense based on estimated grant-date fair value using the following variables:

Valuation and Amortization Method — The Company estimates the fair value of stock options granted using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model and a single option award approach. This fair value is then amortized ratably over the requisite service periods of the awards, which is
generally the vesting period of four years.

Expected Term — The Company’s expected term represents the period that the Company's stock- based awards are estimated to be outstanding
and was determined using the simplified method allowed under ASC 718-10, Compensation — Stock Compensation (ASC 718-10).

Expected Volatility — The Parent Company is a newly listed company and it doesn’t have a listed peer as of the valuation date which are focused
exclusively on the segment in which the Parent Company operate, therefore for the purpose of calculating the volatility, Volatility of the Nifty IT
Index is considered.

Expected Dividend — Expected dividend yield was not considered in the option pricing formula since the Parent Company does not pay dividends
and has no current plans to do so in the future.

Risk-Free Interest Rate — The risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes valuation method is based on the Central Government bond rate in
effect at the time of grant for periods corresponding with the expected term of the options.

Note C FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash equivalents and accounts
receivable. By their nature, all accounts receivable involve risk including the credit risk of non-performance by counter parties. In management's
opinion, as of March 31, 2024 there was no significant risk of loss in the event of non-performance of the counter parties to these cash
equivalents and accounts receivable.
The Company’s cxposure to credit risk for the accounts receivables is minimum. The average credit period to settle accounts receivables is about
30 to 60 days.

Note D CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents, include the following:

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Balance with bank 618,257 3,601,387
Total 618,257 3,601,387
The company has no restricted cash balance as at March 31, 2023
Note E ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES
Accounts receivable, net include the following:
As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Accounts and other receivable 1,053,253 1,786,524
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (86,098) (144,780)
Total 967,155 1,641,744
Note F OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Other Current Assets, net include the following:
As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Security deposits 8,830 35,569
Prepaid expenses 205,939 160,196
Loan to Employees 50,000 -
Related Party Receivables 384,207 -
Total 648,976 195,765




BCV SOCIAL LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note G PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and cquipment, net, comprises of

Furniture and

Computer & Office

Particulars ) K Total
Fixtures Equipment

Gross carrying value:

Balance as at | April 2023 29,741 552,997 582,738

Additions - 88,438 88,438

Balance as at 31 March 2024 29,741 641,435 671,176

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance as at 1 April 2023 28,320 343,460 371,780

Depreciation 450 92,113 92,563

Balance as at 31 March 2024 28,770 435,574 464,344

Net carrying value:

Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,421 209,537 210,958

Balance as at 31 March 2024 971 205,861 206,832




1

6F1°0SE'S 859°069°T | LLS 908°9%1 - 0S9°1I+°E 8SP00T°C $T0T YIIEBIAl € J© Se ouefeg
SOI‘Z00°0L 8S9°069°T | S8S°E 06E'P16 - 1€€°L88°E IF1°90S°T €70T YIIBIA 1€ & Sk oue[eq
:anjea Surkied 19N
68E°SHL'S - €TV'PT | 8T9°089°C [ 9TI'pL8 1£6'082°T 08T°Ske'L pTOT YIIEBJAl [€ 1¢ SE 2dUE[eg
9S6°1S9°T - 800°¢ #8S°LIL = 189°CLY 78950t UoneZIIOUWY
CErErl’L 2 SIV'IT  [PPOEI6'T  |921°9L8 0ST'S08°1 865°6ES°1 £70T Tudy T je se 2oue[eg
“Gc_amﬂﬂhoad vuua.—z.ﬁuﬁuu{
LES'SPI‘LT 859°069°C | 000°ST | vEF'LIBE | 9TI'VLS 185°769°S SEL'SHO'P $T0T YIIBIA [ € J& Se duefeq
LESTSHI'LT  [859°069°C  [000°ST PEYLTS'E  |9TI'HLS 185°769°¢S 8EL'SHOY €70z 11dy [ 1e se aoue(eq
"mn_&> uﬁ_%hhﬁu mmOhU

JWEN ajadwoy| sdrgsuorjejey
[e10], [[IMpoos)| urewoq aseqele(q ~UON I3woisny) 3IBMIIO0S sIe[nanaeJ

LAN "'SLESSY TTIIONVINI H 910N

$Z07T “IE YIIBIA PIPUI 1834 3Y) 0] SJUIIIIL]S [BIDUBUILY Y] 0 SAJON

OTTTVIODOS ADd



BCV SOCIAL LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note I

Note J

Note K

Note L

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other Current Liabilities, net include the following:

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Employee related payable 120,739 86,923
Related Party Payables 7,544,141 10,328,269
Statutory liabilities 68,964 53,255
Advance from customer 50,665 90,347
Deferred Revenue 449,131 478,090
Accrued Expenses 2,750 2,750
Total 8,236,390 11,039,634

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

There are no Commitments and Contingent Liabilities as at 3 st March, 2024.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related Party

Nature of relation

RateGain Travel Technologies Limited (India)

Ultimate Holding Company

RateGain Technologies Limited (UK)

[ntermediate Holding Company

RateGain Technologies Inc.(US)

Holding Company

Rategain Adara Inc

Fellow Subsidiary

RateGain Technologies LLC (Dubai)

Fellow Subsidiary

MyhotelShop GMBH (Germany)

Fellow Subsidiary

Transactions with related parties

Expenses incurred on behalf of

Amount as on

Amount as on March

March 2024 2023
RateGain Technologies Inc., US 604,252 635,821
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK 189,306 44,269
MyhotelShop GMBH 266,936 13,113
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited 350,328 -
RateGain Adara Inc 270,653 -
Expense incurred on our behalf by
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK 116,351 100,619
RateGain Technologies Inc., US 64,351 527,866
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited 805,897 883,737
RateGain Adara Inc 3,713 -

Balances with related parties

asset/(liability)

Related Party Transaction Type Amount as on | Amount as on March
March 2024 2023

RateGain Technologies Inc.(US) Other current liability (7,544,142) (9,585,407)

RateGain Travel Technologies Limited (India)  [Other current 173,707 (199,803)
asset/(liability)

RateGain Technologies Limited (UK) Other current 72,956 (371,262)
asset/(liability)

Rategain Adara Inc (USA) Other current 137,544 (171,797)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT

Short Term Employee Benefits:

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation

can be estimated reliably.

Defined Benefit Employee Plans:

The contributions made by the company under defined contribution plan are recognized as an expense in the statement of income.

12




BCV SOCIAL LLC

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note M

Note N

Note O

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The following tables summarize revenues by region for the years March 31,2024:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Region

March 31,2024

March 31,2023

Revenue from services provided in USA

7,443,431

10,171,252

Revenue disaggregated by timing of recognition:

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Services transferred over time 7,443 431 10,171,252
Total revenue by timing of recognition 7,443,431 10,171,252

SALARY & BENEFITS

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Salaries, bonus and other benefits 5,131,830 7,814,443
Employee stock option expense (14,269) 85,395
Staff welfare expenses 42 509 38,687
Total 5,160,070 7,938,525

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Advertising and marketing expenses 1,665,461 1,989,956
Fees and subscriptions 351,486 517,895
Travelling and conveyance 104,326 192,889
Rent 60,067 164,989
Hosting and Proxy charges 150,187 163,963
Bad debts written off 127918 -

Provision for Bad debts 69,489 65,472
Training & Recruitment expenses 15,000 58,867
Office maintenance 2,969 28,253
Legal and professional 385,550 20,680
Bank charges 11,841 17,870
Communication charges 8,839 14,905
Contractual manpower cost 2,400 -

Electricity charges - 5,816
Miscellaneous expenses - 104
Postage and courier charges 1,615 5,712
(Gain)/Loss on foreign exchange(net) (5,964) 3,137
Total 2,951,184 3,250,508




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

BCV SOCIAL LLC
|
L
\

Note P

Note Q

For BCY

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Employee Stock Appreciation Rights (ESARs) 2022

The Scheme has been adopted by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company (Rategain Travel Technologies Ltd incorporated and listed in
India), on 11 February 2022, read with the Special Resolution passed by its Members of the Company on 19 March 2022 and shall be deemed to
come into force with effect from 19 March 2022 being the date of approval by its Members. The maximum number of SAR Units of the Parent
Compnay that can be granted to any eligible Employee during any one year shall not be equal fo or exceeding 1% of the issued capital of the
Parent Company at the time of grant. The Committee may decide to grant such number of SAR Units equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued
capital to any eligible Employee as the case may be, subject to the applicable laws. Vesting period shall commence from the date of grant subject
to a minimum of 1 (One) year from the grant date and a maximum period 4 (Four) years or such other period from the grant date, at the discretion
of and in the manner prescribed by the Committee, provided further that, in the event of death or permanent incapacity of a Grantee, the
minimum vesting period of one year shall not be applicable.

The Actual vesting would be subject to the continued employment of the Grantee

The following table summarizes the option activity under the Plan for the year ended March 31, 2024:

- Exercise Price
No.of options

Particulars $

Qutstanding as on Ist April 2023 269,449 -
Granted during the year 34,892 -
Vested during the year - -
Lapsed during the year (196,836) -
Outstanding as on 31 March 2024 107,505 -

The Company recorded the stock based Compensation income of $ 14,269 (expense 2023: § 85,395) related to outstanding Stock Options for the
year ended 31 March 2024 included in Salary & Benefits. Options Granted typically vest 10% after one year anniversary of the grant date, then
20% in second year followed by 30% in next year and 40 % in last year.

The fair values are measured based on the Black-Scholes-Merton model on grant date.

RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company's future results of operations involve several risks and uncertainties. Factors that could affect the Company's future operating
results and cause actual results to vary materially from expectations include, competitive factors, including but not limited to pricing pressures;
deterioration in general economic conditions; the Company's ability to effectively manage operating costs and increase operating efficiencies;
declines in revenues, technological and market changes; the ability to attract and retain qualified employees and the Company's ability to execute
on its business plan.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated Lill the date on which is the date the financial statements were issued. No material subsequent event has
beep, noted.

alfh.L

DirectWhopra

Date:16th July 2024




Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of
RateGain Adara Inc.

Report on audit of special purpose Consolidated Financial Statements.

Opinion

We have audited the special purpose consolidated financial statements of RateGain Adara Inc. (“the
Holding Company”), and it’s subsidiary (Holding Company and it's a subsidiary together refer to as “the
Group”) which comprise:

(a) the consolidated balarice sheet as at 31 March 2024;

(b) the consolidated statement of profit and loss accounts (including other comprehensive income),
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the period
beginning from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024; and

(c) notes to the special purpose consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the special purpose
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid special purpose consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Indian
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the basis of preparation referred to in note 2 of the special purpose consolidated fancial
statements, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2024, of its consolidated profit
and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its cash flows for the period ended

on that date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report, We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the special purpose consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on special

purpose consolidated financial statements. /5':‘_::?\\

101, Vaibhay Chambers, Madhusudan Kalelkar Marg, BKG, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400 Pp=="
Heud Office Tel : + 91 (22) 35120533 / 34/ 35/36 Email: ridharan




Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Emphasis of Matter — Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use

We draw attention to Note 2 to the special purpose consolidated financial statements, which describes
the basis of preparation. As a result, the special purpose consolidated financial statements may not be
suitable for another purpose. Our report is intended solely for Group’s management and should not be
distributed to or used by parties other than Group's management. Qur opinion is not modified in respect

of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Special Purpose
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these special purpose consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of
the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with
the basis of preparation referred to in note 2 of the special purpose consolidated financial statements,
including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the special purpose consolidated financial Statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from Material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the special purpose consolidated financial statements, the management and board of
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the special purpose consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic declsions

of users taken on the basis of these special purpose consolidated financial statements.

101, Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalelkar Marg, BKC, Bandra East, Mumibai - 400 051
Head Office Tel : + 91 (22) 35120533 /34/35/36 Email: info@sliridharandassociales.com.




Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the special purpose consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting @ material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as going concern.
If we conclude that a materiality uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to related disclosure in the special purpose consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on audit
evidence obtained up to date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the special purpose consalidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the special purpose consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

101, Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalelkar Marg, BKC, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400 051
Head Office Tel : + 91 (22) 35120533 /34/35 /36 I: infucish dussociates, com




Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountanis

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

For Shridhar and Associates

r ;é)’jf(%:\ Chartered Accountants
f;‘ig'/"'"“‘-f{g:)g_\;\%\ Firm’'s Registration No. 134427W
:C' ‘l‘ 4
; '?‘fiﬁ,ﬂ'\l "r}
SR\ MUME /i,;'} WW
\Eon ) (o E—
\S\'\-‘_r .'__
\:“-‘\H_:;:-'«/ Abhishek Pachlangia
Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No. 120593
Date: 17 May 2024 UDIN: 24120593BKCAMV8397

101, Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalelkar Marg, BKC, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400 051
Head Office Tel : + 91 (22) 35120533 /34/35/36 Email: info@shridharandassoclates.cont




RateGain Adara Inc.
Special purpose Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

Al amounts are in US Dollars unfiss otherwise stated

Particulars Notes As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and ecuinment 3 24,987 -
Goodwill 4 12,333,320 12,333,320
Other intangible assets 5 9,078,900 10,623,042
Deferred tax assets 23 82,004 939
Total non-current assets 21,519,211 22,957,301
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables 6 10,084,398 1,847,013
Cash and cash equivalents 7 4,212,410 2,869,544
Other financial assets 8 330,411 171,797
Other current assets 9 377,839 167,273
Total current assets 15,005,058 8,056,527
Total assets 36,524,269 31,013,828
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10 10 10
Other equity 11 22913475 16,209,097
Total equity 22,913,485 16,208,107
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Habilities
Cther financial rabilities 13 475,727 1,863,544
Total non-current liabilities 475,727 1,863,544
Current liabilities
Financial liabitities
Trade payables . 12 5,304,400 5,543,559
Other financial Habilities 13 3,350,442 4,333,780
Current tax liabilities 19 1,886,143 225,229
Other curcent Habilities 14 2,594,072 2,838,609
Total current liabilities 13,135,057 12,941,177
Total liakilities 13,610,784 14,804,721
Total equity and liahilities 36,524,269 31,013,828
Material accounting policies 2 0
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Shridhar and Associates For-and on behalf of the Board of Qir#_ucturs of
Chartered Accountants RaEEG;{ﬁi {;Eiara_,lrrc'.
AR

Firm's Registration Number: 134427W
1

Abhishek Pachlangia
Partner
Membershio Number; 120593

g
\4\\ {1,/

h, S
Bhanu Chopra
Director
DIN: 01037173

Date: 17 May 2024
PMace: Mumbai

Date: 17 May 2024
Place: Delhi



RateGain Adara Inc,

Special purpose Consolldated Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended 31 March 2024

Alamounts are.in US Dollars unless otherwise stated

Far the year For the perlod
Partleulars Notes ended 14 December 2022 to
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue lrom operations 15 42,801,131 6,519,193
Other Income 16 121,408 4,074
Tolal Incomae 42,922,540 6,523,267
Expenses
Employee benefits exponses 17 15,568,373 2,408,967
Depreciation and amortisation expense J&n 1,549,568 337,642
QOther expenses 18 17,218,941 2,261,608
Total expenses 34,336,882 5,008,217
Profit before tax B,585,658 1,515,050
Tax expense: 19
Current tax 1,962,345 225,229
Deferred tax crodit __[81,065) [939)
Total tax expense 1,881,280 224,290
Profit for the period 6,704,378 1,290,760
Other comprehensive Income -
Total other comprehensive Income = -
Total comprehensive Income for the period 6,704,378 1,290,760
Earnings per equity share (EPS)
Basic EPS 20 6,704 1,291
Diluted £PS 20 6,704 1,291
Material accounting policigs 2
The accompanying nates are an Integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of eyen date altached
For Shridhar and Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants _-;-_—:.___\ RateGaln Adara Inc.
f i i - ’ A
Firm's Registration Number: 134427w 4}/ * "f 7
VA, R (.' N
/4 eV /
\ M .";‘ . %,
% Gana \ ,'.(: ]
Abhishek Pachlangis \ QJ Bhanu Lhﬂpra

Parner
Membership Number; 120593

Date: 17 May 2024
Place: Mumbai

/ Dirgetor
DIN: 01037173

Date: 17 May 2024
Place: Delhi



RateGain Adara Inc,

Speclal purpose Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2024

All armounts are in US Dollars unless otherwise stated

i Equity share capltal

————
Parliculars Amount
—_— . Amount
Balance as at 14 December 2022 "
Changes in gquity share capital during the pesiad 10
Balance as at 31 March 2023 10
Changes in equity share capital during the year 3
—_—
Balance as at 31 March 2024 10
b.  Other equity
Particulars Additional Paid In Retained
Total
Capital earnings
Balance as at 14 December 2022 - - -
Peofit for the e perind__ ~ , . 1,290,760 1,290,760
Addclitional Pand in Cdpl[ﬂl 14,918,337 - _ 14918337
Bal;mg eas at 31 March 2023 14,918,337 1,2?0;75 16,209,097
Profit far the year - 6,704,378 6,704,378
Balance a5 at 31 March 2024 14,018,337 7,995,138 22,913,475

The: description of the nature and purpase of each reserve within equily is as follows:

—

Other Equity

Addinonal Paid-in Capital represents the difference between the par value of the shares and the actual amount recelved from
investors,

M~

Retained earnings
This represents undistributed accumulated earnings of the Group as on the balance sheet date,

As per our report of even date allached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Shridhar and Assoclates RateGaln Adara Inc,
Chartered Accountants e -

Firm's Registration Number: 134427w
B
Abmshu‘m

g

o G”.UI\”BA! A\ -,':.; ‘Dha;w Chopra

_.f_‘7.a"

Partner - 7o WO . K IJm:Ll_ur
Membership Number; 120593 \“:\Si\? ¢ NG DIN: 11037173
'h’ o S
. ,_..:;:"‘"
Date: 17 May 2024 Date: 17 May 2024

Place: Mumbai Place: Delhi
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RateGain Adara Inc,
Special purpose Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 March 2024

All amounts ace in US Doli

ars unloss othorwise stated

Particulars

For the year For the perlod
ended 14 December 2022 to
31 March 24 31 March 23
Operating activities
Profit before taxs 8,585 658 1,515,050
Adjusiments for:
Bepreciation and amortisation expense 1,549,568 337,642
Operating profit betore working capital changes and other adjustments 10,135,226 1,852,692
Warking capitol idjustments:
{hicrease)/ Decrease in trade roceivables 15,236,485) (71,242)
(Increase)/ Decrease in linancial assets (158,614) (171,808)
(ncrease)/ Deciease in other current DesELy (210,566) 155,870
Increase/ (Dectepse) in Lrade payable (239,159) (587,8a4)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial labilities {640,215) 2,539,616
Increase/ (Ducraasel in other cureent Habifitios (244,537} {847,750)
Cash generated from operating activities 3,405,630 2,869,534
Income tacrefund received / (paid) (301,431) .
Nel cash generated from opurating activitles 3,104,199 2,869,534
Investing actlvities
Purchiase ol property, plant and eguipment (30A413)
Consiteration paid tor eaclior acquisition (1,730,920)
Net cash used in invosting activities (1,761,333) -
Financing activities
Issui uf share ¢apital & 10
Net cash from financing activities - 10
Netinerease incash and ash equivalents 1,342,806 2,864,544
Cash and cash equivalemts atthe beginning of the period 2,864, 504 .
Cash and cash equlvalents it gieriod ond 4,212,410 2,869,544

Notes:

The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flaves has boen prepared under the 'Indirect method' s set out in the

. The Campany has entered inte Asset Purchase Agrecaient (APA) dated January 2, 2023 with Adsra Inc, and Fortis Advisors LL

Acquisition ol intangiblie assets and goodwill Pursuant 1o APA during the period ended 31 March 2023 are non-cash items,

+ Changes in llabililies arising from financing aclivities during the period ended 31 March 2023 ;

Ind A5 7 on 'Statement of Cash Flows'.

C 1o acguire their business,

= Cash Non-Cash As al
Partigulor Inflows/(Outflo]  Changos 31 March 2023
ATOrRAT Faid  Capital o ' - 4 14,918,337 14.918.337
Total B - 14,018,337 14,918,337

As per our report of even date attached

For Shridhar and Assoclites

Chuelered Accountants

Fitin's Registration Number, 134427W

Abhishek Pachlangio

Partaer

Membership Number: 120593

Date: 1/ May 2024
Place: Manmbal

For and on behall of the Board of Direclors of

RateGaln Adara Inc,

Bhnnl;'Chupra
Director
DiN: 01037173

Date: 17 May 2024
Place: Dalhi



RateGain Adara Inc.
Notes forming part of the Spocial purpose Cansalidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2024

Allgmauaty ace n US Dollags yplgss otheiwice siated
1 NATURE OF OPERATIONS
Hate3ain Atara Inc. (the 'Campany' or the ‘Parent’) s registersd in the state of Delaware and having its 1eghstered office at 300
Creek View HRoad, Suite 209, Newark UE 19711, Now Castle County. The Company was incorporated on 14 Decomber 2022, The
Company is wholly-owned subsidiary of RateGain Technalogies Inc.. USA and its ultimate parent company s RateGain Travel
Technologies Umited ["RateGain"}, a Saa8 company reglstered In lndia. RoseGaln Is listed I the stock exchanges in India.

{re Compuny is an Information Technology company providing innovative sofutions 10 help cllents in the hospitality and sraval
industry to achiove their business goals. These special purpase ransolidated linancial statemeants comprise the y and its
suibsidiary [logether refeqred 1o ds 'the Group') foi the year ended 315t March 2024,

2.1 BASIS OF PRLPARATION

)

statenient of Compliance

The specal purpose consolidated financial statements of the Group is pripared in atcordance with indian Accounting Standards
prasceibed under Section 133 of the indian Companies Act, 2013 (hecein eferred to as the ‘Ind AS) for (he purpse of proviting
wnfarmation to the ultimate paceat company solely to enable it to prepae s consolidated financial statements, The special puipose
cansplidated financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Direclors on M ay 17, 2024

Basis of Measuroment
the praparation of special purpose cavolidated financal statements in conformity with Ind AS have been pregared on a historical
st bk excepd for cutaln financiat aseets and Binancial fiabilities that are measured at fait vilui of amortired cost.

¢ Critical accounting estimates aml Judgments

lhe prepaeation of specal puipose consolidated financal statements I confurmity with Ind A3 reguices management 1w make
Iudgmunts, eatimates and assumptions Ul alfecy te roported amounts of revendes, expenses, assels and liabilities and disclosure
of the contingent liakilivies at the end of the reporting perigd, Although those estimates are based upon management's best
knowludge of current events and actions, uncertalnty about these assumptions and sstimares could result n the vutcomes
sequirdig o atenial adjustment w o the carying smounts of assets or Habilitios in the future peitods, Changes In estimates aie
reflectad in special purpose consolidated financial statements in the period in which changes are made if material, their effects are
disclosed in the notes of the spicial purpose consolidated linancial statemants.

Infurnation about signdicant areas of estimation/uncertainty and judgments in applying occounting palicies that have the most
stgnificant sfiect vis the hnancat statementy we as follows:

 Jedaient requieed o deteomine probability of cognition of deferced tax assets; impairment assessnient of nomslinaicial assety
Kiy assunptions underlying receverable ameunt;

* impaliment assessment of linancial agsets;

+ measurement of unbilled or defetred revenue;

Thert are no assumptions and estimation uncertaintics tat have a significant risk of resulting in & materlal adjistment within the
next financial year except foras discdlosed in these financial statements,

d Fair value measurement

Falt value is the price that would be receivod 10 sell an asset or pald 1o transher aliability in an orderiy transaction betwoen market
parlicipantt ot the neasaement date. The fag valug peasurgment b hased on the prasumption that the sransaction to seil the
dasel i veansfer thi bty tokes place either,

It dhae principalmasket for the asset o liatility, ar

Inthe absence of o principal maihed, i the most advantageous market lor the asset or Giability.

The printipal or the moest sidvantagepus market must be sicessible tofby the Graup,

Al assets andd Baimes for shich e valow s measded o disclosed in the special purpose consolidated financial siatempnts are
catogorized within fair value hierarchy, duscribed as follows, baged on the lowest level of input that is significant to the far value
measuremnent 43 o whule,

Levei § - Quated funadiusted] prices in active markets for identical assets or labifities.

Leval 2 - Valudtion techniques for which the lowest level inpat that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.

Level 3+ Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant ta the fair value ineasurement is unohseryable

-

For astets and Habilities that are recogeiced o the specal parpose cnselidated financlal statemant< on a recurring basis, the
Company deternines whether transters have occirred belween levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization {based on the
lovest evelinput tiat s signihcant 1w the Bl value measurement as & whole) at the end of pach reparting period.

Fot the patpuse al [air value gisclosures, te Group has defermined classes of assets and liabilitios on the basis of the natury,
characteristics and fisks of the asset or hability and the lovel of the fair valus bierarchy as explained ahove.




RateGain Adara Inc.
Nates forming part of the Special purpose Consolidated financlal statements
2.2 Material accounting policies

The arcounting polities set out heluw have been applied consistently ta the periods prosanted in the pecial purpose consalidated
financinl staterments,

Basls ol consolidatlan

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controiled Ly the Group. The Group ‘centrols’ an antity when It is exposed Lo, of has rights o, variable
fetaris frontits ieyolvement with the entity and has the abifity to affect those relurns through its power over the entity. The
financial statmments of subsidisrics are ingiuded in the special purpose consolidated linancial statements from (he date on wihich
contral commences until the date on which control ceases,

&

Consolidation pracedire foliowed is o5 under:

Iterms of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows ol the parent with those of its subsidiarias are combined like 10
fike basis. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amaunts of the assets and liabilities recognized
inthe consglidated financial statements at the acquisition date

Non-controlling interests (NCI)
NCEare meagared inally al thei proportionete shae of U dequiree's Wentifiable net assets at the date of bt quisition

Chaages i the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accannted for as ety transacians

Loss of control

Whien the Graup loses cantiol over 3 subsigiary, il dececopnises the assels aid labilities of the subsliffary, and any related NCIand
other camgommis of equity. Any resulting gain or loss 15 recognised in proiit or loss, Any interest retained in the fonmee subsitiary
15 measued al (aie value whes continl is lust

Transactions aliminated on consulidation

Intra-group balanies and transactions, and any unrealised income and expeines fuscept for foreign corrency transactivn gaing or
lasses) ansing from intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealisad fains atising from transactions with equity-accounted
investens are eliminated agsinst tig mvestment (o the extent of the Grosup's intarest in the fnvestew, Unrealised losses are
eliminated i 1l same way o5 Unseatised gaing, but 6nly to thi eitent that thee b no wvidencye of impainment

Progerty, Plant and Equipment

Necognition and measurement

Items ol praperty, plant and equipment are measured ot cost, loss accumilatod depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

fhe cast of an éns of property, plant and cquipment comprses {a} its purchase price and non-refundable purchase laxes, alter
deducing trada diecounts and rebates; [b) any costy directly sttibutable w Lininging the asset 1o the location and condition
necessary for it to be capabiv Gt opeeating o U manner intended by management.

The cost of @ seff-constructed itum pf froperty, plant-and equipment comprises the cost of matenials and direct labeur, any other
costdicvatly attabutable to bringing the tem to workiog condition for ns intended use,

Anitens of propedy, plant and equpment and any significant part litially recognised is derecognized upon dispasal or when no
futuiee nconentic benefits are expected lrom its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on dererognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated Statement
of prolit and lass when such ssset is dececognized.

Subsequent cost

subseguent cosly are included T the asset's carrylng amount or recogiised as a separate issel, as appropdate, only when it s
pprobabte that the fatare economic benelits assuaated vath cxpenditore will flow o the Company and the cost of the ltem can be
msasured reliatly, All other subsvguent cost s charged o consolidated Statement of prolit and loss at the time of incurrenice.

Depreciation

Depreciation an property, plant and equipment is provided va the straight-dine method computed on the hasis of estimated uselul
lite on @ pro-rata basis fram the date the assetis ready to put La use,

Oeprecition i calealated on pro tatd Basis i e year af puechiase orsale for tial year.

The tesidual vales, uselul lves and methads al depreciation of property plant and equipment are reviewed by management al
each reporiing, dave and adiusted prospectively, as appiogt faie.

The estinited uselul life of assot is s lolows ¢
Laptop - dvears
¢ Functional and presentation currency

Pl management has determined the carcency of the prinay ecansmie environment n which the Compaily operates, L., the
lunctional currency, to be USO. The special purpose consolidated financial statements are presented in USD, which s the
Company's- functional and prasentation curtency, Ml amodnts have been rounded Lo the pearest USD, unless otherwise stated,
Consequent to tounding off, the numbers presented throughout the dacement may not add up precisely to the totals and
percentages moy nol precisely reflect the abselute amounts,
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RateGain Adara Inc,
Notes forming part of the Speclal purpose Consolidated financlal statements

d Impalrment - non-financial assets

At edch reporling date, the Company reviews Uhe Lairying amounts ot iy non-linancial assets 1o determine whether there is any
indication of impaigment, 1f any SuCih indication of impalrment ¢xists, thea the assel's recaverable amount is estimated. for
impairment testing, assets are nrouped together info (he smaltest group of assets that generates cash inflows Irom cantinuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of ather assets or cash generating units ('CGU'). Goadwill arising from a business
cambination is allacated te 3 CGU or nroups of CGU that are expacted to benelit from the synergies of the combination,

The recoverable amount of an assat or CGU s the greater ol its valde in use and ity fair valug less costs 10 sel), Value o use is based
an the astimatid fulare cash flows, discauntad o thair present value using a discount 1ate that reflects current market
assessonents of the Ume value of money and the risks speelic o the agsel v CEU An impairment lpss s recognised il the carrying
smaunt ol an astelor CGU exceeds ity estimated racoverable amount,

Impairmunl [sses are recognisey in the consolidated Statement of profit and loss They are allacated first o reduce the carrying
amount of any goothwill aliocated 1o the CGU and then 1o reduce the carrying amounts of 1he pther assets in the CGU en a prosrata
basls.

Animipaiiment loss in mepoect of goodwiil s not reversed. For other assels, an impainment [oss is reversed nnly If thera has beon a
change in the estimates used to deteriaing e recoverable athount. Such a reversal ls made only 1o the extent that the assel's
cartyimg anount does not excerd the camying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment foss had beenrecognised,

Provisions aml contingent liabilities

"

Frovisions

Frovisions are recogiised wien the Company his 9 prezunt legal ur combructive obligation a5 a tesult of @ past events, it is
prabiabile that an outliow of resovrces smbogying economic benelits will be requirgd to setthe the obiligation and a reliable estimate
3 b anade ol the amuunt of the uhlgation,

1 the effect of the e value of monuy is matecal, provisions are discounted SR @ current prestax rate that riflects current
markel assessiments ol the fhine vile ot money and the risks specilic to te lability, VWhen discounting is used, the Increase in thoe
nrovision due la the passage of timne 15 recognised as a linance cost.

Contingent liablilties

Lontinguat liabilitivs are pussible obligations that atise fram past events and whese existénce will only be confirmed by the
GECULnCE Gt Har-oeeurnmive of o ur e uncertaii fature events not whedly within the control of the Company, Where it is not
prababie that an autliow: of veonvimic benefits will be requited, vr Wie amount connol be estimated reliably, the odligation s
disclased as o contingent fiability, unless the probability af sutfiaw ot economic benelits s remote,

Contingent Asset

Contingem asset 14 not recognised iy consulidated financial statemients since this may resull in the recopnition of income that may
fevier be teaiised. However, when e cealisation of income is virtaally centain, tien the related asset is nol a contingent asset and
is recpnized,

Provisions, contingent Rubliivies Gad contingent sssels sre reviowed at each Uatance Sheet dite,

Cmployee bunafits

Short-term vroployee bepelits

Employee benelit liabilivies sucs ae salarivs, wa, and bonws, ete that are expected 1o be settled wholly within twelve months
alter he aod of the reporntiog perked i which the nmplayaes render the relatod service are recognised in respect of employcu'y
sevices up Lo the end of the reporting pedod and gre meassired at an undiscounted amovint expected 10 be paid when the
fabifities are setticd.

Defined benelit plans

Adefined benehit plan i a post.employmant benefit plan other thin a defined contribution plan, The Company’s net cbligation in
respiect of defined benefiv plang Is calculoted separately for vach plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
Bave carmed in the carrent and prior perods, discounting that amount and dedutting the fair value of any plan pssels,

Delined contribution plens
A deliped contribution plan is 3 poct employment benelit plan under which the Company pays fixed cumtributions to the
Bavermnent and will have no logal or fongtayctive obiligition wo pay further amounts. Payments t defined contritiution plans are

recagnised asan expenie when eoplogees have rendured seryice sntding ten te 1he contributions.,
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¢ Income taxes

Income 1 expense comprses of current Lax and deforced tin 1L is recognised in the consolidated profit or logs except lo the
extent thal ik relates to items recogaisad in ather comprehansive income or directly in equity.

Current Lax

Current tax Lomprises the expected Lix pavable or receivable on the taxable ingome or 105 lor the period and any adjustment 1o
the Loy payable of receivablie in respect of previous perlads. The amaunt of current tax teflects 1he bost estimate of the tax amount
wapectid 1o e paid or received alter considgring the uncortainty, if any telsting 10 Income taxes. it s measuryd using tax rates
enacied lor the relevant répoiting poriod. Current 1ox assels and current tax linbilities are offset only i there 1 a legally enforceable:
nght 1o set off the recognised amounts, and itis intencad (o realize the asset 3ad settle the liability on a net basis,

Deferred tax

Defereed Lax s recogniced in respect ol temporary diffecences bitween the canying amounts of assets and habilities for financial
repoding purposes and the caresponding amounts used for Laxation puigoses

Deteered vac liabiiines ara recognised far all Laxable vemparary diflerences. Delerred tac assels are tecognisnd 1a the oxtent that it
15 probabie that futare taxable profits will be available agaimi veich they can bie used, The existente of unused tax losses Iy stong
ideice that luture taabie profit inay not be available: Therefora, in case of a kistory of recent losses, the Company (eCognizes «
fisfred ta assed only to the exteat that & has sufiiient txable temperary differences or there Iy convincing ether svidence that
sullicient talsle profit will bie avalable againgt which such deferced tax asset can be tealized. Defored tax assers - unrecognized or
recopnisil, are taviewod at each reporting dnte and are recognised / reduced to the extent that (s probable / no longer probable
respectively 1t e related tax benefit will be realived.

Deferred tag is nyeasurad ol the G rates Uil ore expectied th apply to the period when the agsset s ralized or liability i settied,
Lased on thi: laws=that have been enacted o substantively enacted by the reporting date.

i mesisurensent of deferred L refiocgs U tix consequences that wauld [ollow from the nunner in which the Company expects,
at A qeporting date; o recover or settie the canying sowat of its assets and labilities, Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
tabilities are offeer only i there i o legally enforceable right to offset corrent tax labilities and assets levied by Wie same tax
auttuinbies.

Current and nonscurrent classification

Allassets and hubilities ore classified o current and nonccurrent.

Assely

Anatset s classified as current when it satishies any of the following eriteria: 1tis expected to be realized in, or is ntended for sale
or consumption in, the company's normal operating cycle:

itis held primarily for the purpase of belig taded;

s eape ted Lo be realized within 12 montiss after the reporting date; o
Abs cash or cash equivaleal tnless it iy restricted from eing sxchanged o vy o settla a fiability for at least 12 months alter the

reporting piriod
Currunt assets include thi conent peruan of non-carient finandial assers. Al other assets are cassified as non-cuieent

Liabifities

A ttability Is elassiliod as current when It satisfies any of the following citerla:

it iy expected W be settled in the company’s normal apuerating cyclo;
It ds hedd prioarily Far the purpoese of belng traded;

-

i e b b settied veithin 12 miantis after thie ceporting period; or
+ the Company does not have an unconditional tdght w deter settiement of the Bahility for at léast 12 months after the reporting
jeriod

Curgent babilities inclade the cerent portion ol nonccarent tinaneial babiiities. AlL other abilities are classilied as non-current.

Deterred tax assets and liabilities are dassilied as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cyclo

The operating eyele is the time belvaren the scquisition af assets for pracassing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents.
Basadd an the nature of operations and the ime between the acquisition of assels fur processing and theie realization in cash and
eraipind its aperatiog cyche beitgg 4 penoid of 12 months for the puipose of classificatian af

cash euiivalents, tiv campany hag 2

agsets and labilties agcurrent and ao Carrent
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Notes forming part of the Special purpose Consolidatud financial statements

i Farelgn cusrency transactions

Monelary and nonmonetary wangacions o fotaign vuerencies are initlally recarded in the functional currency of the Company at
the exchange rales at the date ol the transactions.

Monelary fereign currency assets and ligbilivies cemaining unsettled an foporting date are transialed at the rates of exchange
peevadiog on reporting date. Gains/{lusses) arising on accaunt of realization/settlement of forelgn exchange transactions and on
tanslation of mongtary foreign currency assets and liobilities are recognised in the consolidated statement of gnafit and loss,

torelgn exchangs gains/{losses) arising on translation of foraign currency monetary loans are presented in the consolidated
statement ol profil and 1054 on a1 bacls,

Foreign operations

Tho assets and liabilities of fareign aperations i.e. sutisidhary inciuding goodwiil ani fair value adjustiments arising on arquisition, are
translatod infa 14 a1 the exchange rotes ot the repuitng daie, The ncome and expenses ol loreign operations are transloted into
INR At the exchange rites ot the dates of the transaclions L averape rete il the sverage rate approximates the actual rate at the
date of the trantaciion,

Forein cutrency diffecences are recognised in QC1 and accumulated in the equily (as exchange differences on translating the
financial statements ol s loreign pperation), ekcept 1o the extent that the exchange differences are allocated to NCI

When a fareign aparation is disposed of ny ity enticety ur partially such that control Is fost, the cumulative amount in the translation
feserve telated 1o that foreign opesation is reciassifiod 1o profit or foss as part of the galn or foss oo disposal, If the Group disposes
of part o i interestin o subsidisey it retams Contenl tion the relivant gopartion of e cunndative amount is reallacated to
HEL
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| Revenuu recagnition

Revenue from Conlracts with Costomas, rovenue is ecopinsed upon ansier of control of promised services 1o customers.
Revenut wweards satistaction’ of a performance obligation is measured at the amount ol teansaction price {net of variable
consideration} sllucated o that peramnance abligation. The transaction price af poods sold and services rendered Is net of variabile
consideration on arcaunt of vanous discounts and schenes offered y ihe Campany as part of the contract. Revenue is recarded
nrovided the recavery of conideration is probable and detenminable,

Revanue from operations is recognised (o the extent that it s probanie thal the economic benefits will (low to the Company and
the revenue can be celiably measused

Hevenue from sale of servicas i recopnised over the specified cantract period on straight line basis or on the basls of undertying
sirvices performed, as the case may be, in accordanca with the terms of the contracts with customers or when the related services
are perfanyid a5 per the Lerms of contracts,

rontract-assets are recognised when there js excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classilied as
unbilled 1eceivabiles fanly azt of invmeing, is pending) when thers is unconditionat right ta teceive cash, and only passage of time is
tequited, as put contragtugl terms

The Company difers uneprned ool delened revenae, incuding Ppayments feceived in advance, until the related contract period i
complete or underdying services are pedommed,

=

Goodwill and ather intangible assets

Guodwill arising on the acquisitiun ol buginess Is measuired at cost less accunwilated impainment losses,

Other intangible assets, mcluding those scquired by the Company in & business combination and have finlte usefyl lives are
npasuried atcostless accumiitated anomisation and any aceumulated imgalrment losses,

Subsedient weonditire is capltalised anly when it increaves the future econtmic Benofity smbodiad in the specific asset to which
it aelates All ot eapeniityre, inchiding wipenditue ot intemally generated goodwill and brands, is recoguised in proflt or lusy as
ticutrud,

Amortisation is calculaled to weite off the cost of intangible assets Jess their estimated residual values using the steaight-ling
method aver their estimated selul ives and by genesally recopnised in depreciation and amortisation in Statoment of profit and
luss, Goodwill s not amortised

Tha estimated uselul lives are as lollows:
Customer Rebitionstips - 12 Yours
Software - 6 Years

Amcrtsation methuds, usefol lives and residudl values g reviewad st each sepocting date and adjusted if appropriate,

Financial instruments

Afinancial instrament is any contrant tiat gives dse w s fnanclal assor of one aotity and a lingndal labifity or eguity instrument ol

anuther entity

Financlal assety
Hecognition and injtial measurement

Trade recefvabies and dabt instruments are initlally recognised when they are originated, All other financial assets are initially
recogoised wehen the Company becoms a party 1o the contractial provisions of the insteament, All financial sssets are Initlally
mieasured at faic value plas, for anitem not at fair value through Statenient of profit and foss, transaction costs that are attribwtable
10 s acquisition or use. However, trade racolvables that do not cuntain o significant financing component are measured at
transaction price,
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Classllication

For the pucpose of intial recogniion, the Company classifies ts financial assets in tollowing categories:

Findacisl dssets measwed 3L amartied ¢
(FYIOCL); and

al financiil assets measured ot falr value theongh other comprehensive incame

Fingndialassels ateasured at fair value theough profit and foss {FVieL)

Financial ausets are nat reclassified subisequeny Lo their initlal recopnitian, except il and in the peried the Company changes lis
husiness madel for managing financisf assets.

Afinantial asset beiog 'debt instrument' i measured at the amortized costif both of the following conditions are met:
The fleancial asset is held within s business model whose abjective Is vo hiold sssets Tor caltecting contractual cash lows, and

The cantiactual terms of the fisancial sssel wive nee an specified dates t cash Hows that arg solely Payments of Principal and
taterest (SPRT an the principal aniaunt outstanding.

Afinancial asset huing ‘debt instewrnent” is wieasored a the FYTOCHT both of tie lollowing criteria are tet; Thie assel is lield vathin
the busingss model, whose objetive is achieved both by coliewring contractual cash flows and seliing the financial assels, and

M contiactual teenis ol the finangial asset give rse on specificd dates wocash flows that e S#P1 on the principal amount
outstanding

Adancial assat buing vqaity imstrement is nusisured at FVIPL Al Binancial assets not clissified as measured at amuitized cost or
P0G a3 desenbed above are measured at FIPL,

Subsequent mivasurement
Financlal assets at amortized cost

These assets e subsequently measured ol amortived cost ubing the effective interest method. Thi amortized cost is reduced by
inipaicaent fusses, iy, Intorest Inesmi and impairment $e recogiscd in the consolidated Statement of profit and loss,

Financial assels al FYTPL

Ihese assets are subsoquently measured ot fair value, Net gains and fasses, including any Interest Income; are recognised in the
consalidated Statement of profit amd lass,

Derecognition

B Company derecogaizes & fnanciab syset s the conteattiual rghts o the ¢ash flows from the linancial asset eupire, or it
twbisfurs the dighity Lo aceeive the contractaal casl fiows o d tansaction in which substantially olf of the gks and rewards of

ownership of the financial asset are wansterred o in which tie Company neithon tansfurs nor retains substantially all of the neks
s of awneeship and it dors st retain cantrol of the linancial asset, Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised inthe

and e
Statement of profit and fusy.

Impafrment of tinanclal assets (other than at fair value)

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the Fxpected Credit Loss (ECC) model for the financial assets which are not fair
valued theaugh prahit and loss. tass allowance for trade recelvablos with no significant financing companent s measured at an
amownt equal 1o lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expectad credit 16580 are measured at an ainount eual ta the 12¢
rmonth ECE, dndess thers as been aosignificant incroase in ceadit risk from Ini recogoition, In which case those financial assets
measured at ffenme ECL The chisnges lncremental of reversalf In loss aflowance computed using ECL madel, are recognised as an
impaiement aln ar loss in the Statement of prolit and loss,

Wilte-off

Thwe geons carying amount of & finaneial assetis weitlen off {eiter pintially o i full) to the extent that there Is no reatistic praspoct
of tecovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the caunterparty does not have assety or sources of
Incame that could generate sulficient cash floves to repay the amounts subject to wilte-olf, However, financlal assets that are
witlon olf could still ba subject to anfarcument activities In order o campiy with the Company's prucedures for recovery of
AMOLrts dui.
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Financial liabilities
Recognition and Inltial measurement

Allfinancial Sabilities are initially meogaised when the Company becomes a panty 10 the conteatiual provisions of the instrument,
All finanaial abilitios are initiaily mascured at fair value minus, for an item not at fair value thraugh prahit and lass, transaction ¢osts
that are atlrbutabie to the lability

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financiol Habilities are classified oy measured at amortized cost or FVIDL, A financial liability is Classified as FVTILIfIL i clagsitied os
beld-lar-trading, o 1Us a derivative or iLis designated as such on initial rechgnition. Financial latilities st FVTPL are messured gt
fair value and nel gaing and losses, Including any Interest expense, are recognised in the Statement of prokit and loss.

Financiat habiities other than classified a5 FVIPL, are subsequently measured 3t amortized cosy using the elfective interest methad,
Interast expanse are recognised In Statement of prafit and loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition (s also recognised In the
Statement of peolit and loss.

Derecognition
thes Compiany deceeognizes a linancial flabitity when its contractuat obligations are discharged of cancelled or explred.

The Company atse derecoginizes a finandal Rability when its terms are moditied and the cash Hows under the modifted terms are
substantially different. in s case, o new inancial lability bised on midtfied terms is recognised at fair value. [he difference
between the carrying wmount of the financial Bability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recopnisid
e the Statcinent of profit and loss,

Oltsenting of financial instiuments
Financial assuts and financial kaliities are offset, and the net amount pressnted in Uhe Balance Sheet when, and only when, the

campany curraitly has a fegally enforeeable right Lo set off the winounts and it intends either W seltie them on a net basis of 16
rishize the assets and sette the lobitties simultapesusly.
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m Leases - Asa legsoe

Atinception of a rontract, the Company assesses whethor a contract is, or containg, a lease, A conteact is, ur contalns, a fease if the
centract conveys the fight Lo contral the use of an identilied asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

the Company ias elected not 1o recognise nght-of-use assels and lease Habilities for leases of low-valie assets snd shotbterm
Iwases. The Company recognises e lease payments agsociated with these leases as an expense in profit or loss on a stralght-line
basic aver the lease term,

Eamings pershare

Wasic Earnings Por Share

Badic earnings per share s caleutited by dividing the geofiy {or Inss) attributable (o the owners of (he Company by the weighted
Average nuober of equity shacs autstanding during the perlod. The weighted average numbes af equity shares autstanding turing
the pariod is adjusted for Bonuy iggue, bonus element in a rights issue 1o existing shareholders, share split and reverse shaie aplit
(ransphation of charee).

Diluted Earnings Por Share

Ollutedd earnings per share is compited by dividing the prafit [congidered in determination of hasic earnings per share) atver
considenng the elfuct of interest snd other linancing costs ar incame {nel of atributable taxes) assodisted with dilutive potential
equity shases by the weighted average number of aquity shares considercd lor deriving basic camings per share adjusted for the
weiphted average numbe: of equity shares that would have Bewn issned upnn conviersion ol all dilutive potentisl enuity shares,

Business combination

the Company's accounty fer business combination are prepated using the acquisition method whien thi acquired set of activitios
dad assats moets the delinition of & business amd conteot is wansferred to the Cempany. In determining whother a particular set of
activities and asspts iv a business, the Company assesses whethes e set of assets and activities acquired includes, at a minimum,
A Input and substantive grocess and whethur the acquired set has the ability (o produce oulputs,

e

The Company has an option to apoly o ‘concentration test' that pesoits a simplified assessmont of whiether an acquired set of
ACtvELes and assels is not o busiiess The sptivnal concmeation test i mat if substantially all of the falr value of the BIOss assely
dcguind is conventrated in i slogle identifiable asset or group of similar wentiliable assets,

The censhieration transforrad in the acquisition i puneraily measpied at fair value as at the date the control s acyuired (acuuisition
dated, as are the identiliable net assets acqulred, Ay goodwili that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain gn a bargain
purehase is rocogatsed in the OCEand accunlated i equity 95 capital reserve if there exists clear evidenge of the underlying
feasons tor cassifying the business comblnation as o bargain purchase. 1 Uieis doss now exist clear wvidence of the underlying
frusing for cassibying the businuss combination as a bargain purchave, then gain on a bargain purchase iy recopnised directly in
sguity as copital resirve, Transaction costs/ acquisition related tosts are expensed as incurred and services are received, except if
related 1o the ssee of debt or equity seouities.

The consideration Wansferted dovs ot include amownis related to e setlemant of pre-existing relationships with the acquires,
Suchamaunts ara generally recagnisud in the statement of profit and loss.

Any contingent consideration is messired ab (aic valwe at the date of acquisition, f an obligatian 1o pay contingent cansideration
that mgets the definition of & linancalinsteurment is classified s equity, then it is not remeasured ond settlement is accounted for
viithin wquity. Otherwise, othier conbngent comideration is remeasured it valug at each reporting date and subsequent
changes in the fai value ¢f the centingent consideration are cerogoised i the statement of profit and logs.

Recagnitivn of Interest income

Intwest s onte of erpenne b recognised wlig the eifective nterest methuy,
The ‘eifective Interest ratetis the cate that exactly discounts estimated future cash Payments or receipts through the expected life
of the Iinancial instrument to:

i ot canying amouat of the brancal agser, o

- theamon el cost ul the loancial Fabilivy
v caleulaliog interest incomma and crpense, e elfoctive Interest tate s applied to the gross cinying amount of the asset (wien
the astel is not credit-mpaired} o 10 the amortised cast of the fishility.

Haweyar, fof hnangad assets that liave bocomar eredit impailied suiisequent o initial recognition, Interest incomie is calonlgied by
siiplving the eflective Interest e 1o the amattised rost of the financial assat. 1F the asset is no lenger gredit impalred, then the

calcubation of interast income reverts ta (he grass basis.
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for the year ended 31 March 2024

All amounts are in US Dollars unless otherwise stated

3 Property, Plant and Equipment
Computer

Cost

Balance as at 14 December 2022 and 31 March 2023 s
Additions during the year 30,413
Balance as at 31 March 2024 30,413

Accumulated amortisation:
Balance as at 14 December 2022 and 31 March 2023 -

Depriciation for the year 5,426
Balance as at 31 March 2024 5,426

Net carrying value:

Balance as at 31 March 2024 24,987
Balance as at 31 March 2023 .

& MU?ﬁ M5
2' / ;{f‘J
el 4



RateGaln Adara Inc.
Nates forming part of the Special purpose Consolidated financial statements
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Al amounts are in US Dollas unless atherwise statud

a

Goodwill

Yol amaunt
Gross carrying value:
Balance as at 14 December 2022 ¥
Changes during the perod 12,333,320

bl &

Balance as at 31 March 2023 12,333,320

Changes during the year -
Walance as at 31 March 2024 12,333,370

i 8,333,320
The Campany has geaviited goudwill po sccotmt of acesticn of husioess pursuant 16 AsSeL Muchase Agmuuleni (APA) dated January 2, 2023 with Adara Inc, and Fortis
Ativisore LLC.

Ihi Company tests geodwill mpalrment annuilly. Foc ke purptses of impatiment testing, goodwid is allocated w respective “COU” within the LCompuany,

For CGU's comaining goadwill, TRANUECIent conducts mpatiment assessimant and compares the carrying amount ol such CGU with its recoversble amount. Recoverable
AMOUNL iz valie in use of e CGU computed based upon discounted cash flow projections, The hey assumplions used for camputation of value in ise e the growih rate
anl discount sate 3y spucilicd helow, The key assumpticns nave been determined based on management’s calculations after considering, past experiences and olhor
availahle internal informatlan and are cunsistent vith oxieral sowrcos of intarmation Lo the extent applicabile.

Key assamptions As al 31 March As at 31 March

2024 2023
Discount rate 15.8% 10 17% 19.4% to 125
Ternimal groviti ate 24 2%

Growth rates:
Thie growth rates reflect the fong tenm average geowth ates for i prediictfines and industeies of the segments.

Discount rates:
The discount rates refloct appropiciate adjustments refatiog o market risk and specific risk factors of related to the Group.

For CeUs containiag goodwill, the inpaiment assessment did not resull in any impaicenent loss and the management helieves that any repsunably possiile change in the
Koy assumriptions wouki uot Gise the Lartying amount o exzeed the recovirable amount of the said CGUs,

Intungible assets ‘
Customer

It tal
Soltwares Relationshlp® Total amount
Gross carrving value:
Balance as at 14 December 2022 . & &
Acquisition thraugh business combination {refer nue 21) 7,625,191 3,435,490 10,960,684
Balance as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 7,525,194 3,435,490 10,960,634
Accumulated amontisation:
dalance as at 14 Decembor 2022 5 2 5 ..
Charge tor the perod 274,803 62,740 JJ.i,bfi)
tilance as at 31 March 2023 274,893 52.1‘?9 ]31,&1'2
Charge for the yea: 1,257,166 206,977 1,544,142
Balance ay at 31 March 2024 1,532,059 349,726 1,881,784
Net carrying value:
Balance as at 31 March 2024 5,993,135 3,085,764 9,078,900
Balance as at 31 March 2023 7,250,301 3372, 10,623,042
! Customer relationships are intangible assets that represent the value of the cumpany's relationships with its customers.
e~
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All amounts are in US Dollars unless otherwise stated

& Teade receivablog
Biled, uisecured considerstd gond
Unbied, anseciiretd considlérad pood*

Credit fimpaired

Less: Luss oltowance (reler note 25(i){a))

As at 31 Asat3l
March 2024 March 2023
10,005,327 4,749,435

79071 Q8,478

829,228 659,228

10,013,626 5,507,141
(829,228) (659,224)
10,084,398 4,847,913

The receivable is ‘unbiled because the Company has not yat issued an invalice; inwivor, the balance hag hoen included inder trade roceivablis(as oppoied W contract

ansets) beoauee o by an unconditional dght to considoratiog

outstanding from the due date

Less than 6 6months - 1

Matre thun 3

Particulars Unbilled Not Due 1- 3 years Total
maonths year years
Undispiited Trade receivables - comidered good 19,071 4,143,925 5,116,660 712,168 32,524 10,084,398
Undisputed Trade roceivables: credit impaired . ng,473 103,449 18,407 Gi4,899 829,224
Balance as at 31 March 2024 79,071 4.232,1'Ji'.| 5,220,109 730,575 651,473 - 10,913,626
’ : Outstanding from the due date
Less than onths - 1 orat
P ticulars Unhilled Not Due essthan g, fmont 1-dyears M bhan 2 Total
months year years
L'nuns]mh;d frady recerabies nm.‘-mcn:xil;,m.ﬂ D7k i, 360 A,340,684 A07 482 10,131 5,507,141
5] |=|i:E!lglLi! i civables: de g ~ 6,962 245,534 Js7,108 9,604 640,228
|l.t!au[e as at 31 Warch 2023 _9BayB 651,320 AL.BJJI.{N! . 794,590 19,755 6,166,169
7 Cashand cash equivalents
Halances with baoks i current accaunt (refer note 26{iyal A4,212,410 2,869,544
4,212,410 1,864,534
8 Other current linancial assets
(Unsceuted and consldered qood at amogtised cost)
fegeyabiles fams reiated parties {reles note 24 313,03 1,97
Acsrucd inderest 17,358 :
()
B 1 VT ORIV
9 Other gurient asigts
(unisecired anu caissitiered yood)
Propad expenses 377,839 167,273
: 37?&_39 162,273
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10 Equlily share capital

Subscribed capltal
Commaon Stock - Options

Notes:

(1) Terms and rights mtached to equity shares

As ot As at
March 2024 March 2023
10 10
10 10

==

The Company has only one class-al aquity charas having a par vatus of USD 0.01 por shara. Fach holdar of equity shores is entitloed to ane voli per shate, nthe
event of liguidation of the Company, helder of equity shares will be wntitled 10 1eceive remalning assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential
amnunt The distribition will be in proportion (o the number of equity shaies held by the shoreholders.

a  Raconciliation of the number of sharos and amount outstanding st the beginning and at the end af the puriod:

Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No of Shares Amount o of Shares Amount
Equity shaces outstanding at the beginning of the year/period 1,600 10 - -
Add : issued during the year/period r 1,000 10
[Fquity shares outstonding at the end of the year 1,000 10 1,000 10
(i) Shares held by each sharehalder holding more than & percent shares:
Particalars As at Asal
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
RateGain Technologies Inc. 1,000 1,000
(v} Detalls of shareholding of promoters:
Atthe end of 31st March 2024 Atthe end of 315t March 2023
Se.N )
S FgmlRcme woltotal |3 Change during]  Noof % Change during
No of Shares : % of 10tal sharus
shares the year Shares the period
1 |RateGain Technologies ‘nc. 1,000 100% 0% 1,000 100% 100%
As at As at

11 Other Equity

11({a) Additional Paid-in-capltal

Balance at the beginning of the year/period
Additional Paid In Capital during the year/pericd
Balancy ot the end of the year/perod

11{b} Retained earnlngs

Balance at the beginning of the year/pedod

Prafit for the year/period

Bolarico at the end of the year/period

March 2024

March 2023

14,91%,337 :
- 14,918,337
14,018,337 14,018,337
1,290,760 .
6,704,378 1,260,760
7,095,138 1,290,760
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All amounts are in US Dollars unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2024 March 2023

12 Trade payablus

Trade payabluy 5,304,400 5,543,554
9,304,400 5,543,559

Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2024 Is as follows:

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due data of payment
Not Due 1 Total
Less than 1 -2 Years i Viped Mare than 3 ota
Year Years
MSME - - - - - :
Others - 4,439,003 865,397 5,304,400
Disputed dues - MSME . . - E 5
Disputed dues - Others - . v . 3 :
5 4,439,003 865,397 - 7 5,304,400
Ageing for tride payables outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 More than Total
a3 ] o 1-2 Years 2-3Years e
Yar Years
Mt - - X i % &
Qthers - 4,155,360 315,562 147,254 895,383 5,543,559
Disputed dues - MSME - . . - -
Lisputed dues - Others - - - 3 - -
+ 4,155,360 345,562 147,254 595,383 5,543,559
13 Other finangial liabilities
Non-current
Custamer Deposity . 3,034
Contingent Consideration (Refer note 21) 450,000 1,838,392
Payable ta Adara Ing, 25,727 22,118
475,727 1,863,544
Current
Employee benefits Payable 2,157,821 813,504
Deferred consideration (Refer note 21) 143,335 1,450,863
Payable to related parties (refer note 24) 1,049,286 2,069,413
3,350,442 4,333,780
14 Other current liabilities
Defered revenue 2,594,072 2,838,609
2,594,072 2,838,609

f{:'::: .
/;;.E’_}-/
(() WML TAEA

&
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Notes forming parl of the Speclal purpose Consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024
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For tha year

For the perlod

ended 14 Dacember 2022 to
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1% Revenue from spreatians
Sale gl sy 42,801,131 6,519,193
42,801,131 6,519,193
{a) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below s the disagpeegation of revienne from cantracts with costimerny:
Type of services
Data as a cervice (DanS) 11,450,961 2,549,994
Anabytics Repury 1,770,992 1,315,123
Sanh Revenue 20,570,178 2,654,076
Total revenue from contracts with customers 42,801,131 6,519,193
Geopgraphical region
Ronh Amerdca (prmarily United Stites of Angerica) 32,154,624 4,270,533
turepe (privanly United Kingdom) 4,418,548 1,207,842
Asta Pacilic (prmarily India) 4,24%, 758 995,139
Others 1,762,201 45,429
Total revenue from contracts with customers 42,801,131 6,519,193
Timing ol recognition
Reyenue recogniaed over tine 11,910,918 2,549,965
Revenue recoprised ata point of time 30,890,613 3,969,228
Total revenue from contiacts with customers 42,801,131 6,519,193
(1) Asses apd liabilities related to contracis with customers
Vrade receaables 10,005,327 4,749,405
unbifted revenie 9,071 4,478
Defermd reventie 2,590,007 2,538,600
Remalsing peiormance obligstions as at thie aepontbs] date ane expeced o be sulistantially i ognised over the nest reporting period by the Group.
(¢) Revenue recognised in relation contract liabilities
Contract labilities related 1o sale of services
Deferied pvenue 2,594,072 2,835,609
{d) Recondiling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with tha contracted price
Nevenue s per contracted price 42,801,131 6,519,193
Adjustments:
Rebate . .
Revenue trom tantracts with customurs 42,801,131 3,519,193
16 Other incune
Interest ncone 76,272 4,074
Uipbifitles wiitien bock 43,137 -
121,409 4,074




RateGaln Adara Inc,
Notes forming part of the Special purpose Consolidated financial stalements
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For the year
andad
31 March 2024

" For the poriod
14 December 2022 lo
31 March 2023

17 tmployue benelits erpinse

Saluries ond woges 15,542,338 2,389,779
Stalf welfare vxponses 26,035 19,188
15,568,373 2,008,967
1 Other expenses
Advertising and sales promglion expeisey 6,778,691 w0/, 150
External Yervices 1,912,267 A74,580
Demand Partner fees 4,970,760 A71,102
Hosting & Proxy Charges 1,534,022 1410
Postage, telophona & internst expeises 085,750 19,17s
Soltware Licensas 378,738 143,001
Travelling and conveyance 128,000 75,313
Lagat and professional fees 40,878 -
Provision for Epected Credit L oss (Debrors) 170,000 .
Fees & Subsenptions 134,648 17,365
Lotertatnmeat HO,713 12,659
Transportation and Other Costs 61,3401 14,706
Insurince A4,24%
Loss on ferelgn eachange {rey) 20,960 8,696
Hent and other space costs 5,297 3,045
Bank charges 3788 2,200
Office Supplies and Incidental Lxpenses 2,93 1,646
Misceilancous cxpensey 31,521 9,053
Tolal 17,218,942 2,261,608
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20

Income laxes

Income Lax recognised in the statement of prolit and loss

Current tax
Inrespect of the current yeat/period

Deferred tax
Inrespect of the current year/period

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year/period

The Income tax expense for the year/period can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows;
Prolit before tas

Federal tax rale
Incomie tax expense ol federal taarate

Tax Incentive

Tax for prior years
Expense disallowed in Tax
Others

For the year Period from
ended 14 December 2022 to
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1,962,345 225,229
(81,065) (939)
1,881,280 224,290
8,585,058 1,515,050
21% 21%
1,802,988 318,101
- (98,516)
70,201 -
12,697 -
(4,607) 4,646
__LBRL 279 224,290

Carnings per share (EPS)

Basic £ amounts are calcutated by dividing tie profit for the period attributable to equity halders hy the weighted average number of equity

shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted E£S amounts are calculated by dividing tie profit for te period attributeble  equity holder by the weighted average number of equity
shaces outstanding during the period plus the weightad average number of equity shares that would be Issued on conversion of all dilutive

potential equity shares into eguity shares.
The tollowing reflects the income and share data used in e basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulurs

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

Period from
14 December 2022 to
31 March 2023

Earnings atuributisble Lo equity holder of the Parent Compiny

Number of shares:

Qpening 1,000 -
Add: issued dunng the year/period - 1,000
Closing 1,000 1,000
Profit for the yearfperiod 6,704,378 1,290,760
Total number of equily shares 1,000 1,000
Basic £PS 6,704 1,291
Diluted ERS 6,704 1,291
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Business combinations
Acquisition of Adara Inc,
Summary of acquisition

The Company has indirectly, throtigh ts holding company, RateGain Tachnologios Inc. gaterad inta an Assels Purchase Agiusiment (APA) on 02
January 2023 (o acquire substantially all the assets of Adara Inc., USA., The acquired company is one of the world’s largest data exchange
platlorms, providing access to ethically sourced customer data, As per the terms ol the APA, the Company through ils holding company needs to
pay purchase consideration as follows :

Purchase Consideration

Particulars Amountin USD
Cash paid* 14,918,347
Deterred Consideration”* 3,289,155
Purchasae consideration (A) 18,207,602
The assets and liabllities recognised as a resull of the acquisition are as follows:

Intimgible assets 10,960,084
Trade receivables 4,776,668
Other assets 323,143
Trade payables (4,104,122)
Other linancial lishilities (2,395,733}
Gther current liahilities (3,686,359)
Identiliable net assets acquired (1) 5,874,282
Goodwill (A-B) 12,333,320

Gaodwill represents residual asset vilue atibutable 1o unidentified intangible assets acquired by the Company,

+ The consideration of USD 14,918,347 is paid by RateGain Technologies Inc., @ holding company which is accounted as equity under the head "
Additional paid up capital” in accordance with the APA.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in i manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chiel Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") o
e Group. The CODR is considered Lo e the Managing Director who makes steategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources wnd
assessing the linancial petlormance of the eperating segments,

The Group helps brands and destinations win in the digital economy by providing the data and measurement tools they need to boost engagement
and drive growth, Tha Group's business activity falls within a single segment, which is providing innovative solutions to help clients in travel,
cutertainment and real estates o gain real-time insights from the marketplace and more effectively engige with consumers at scale, in terms of
IND AS 108 "Operating Segments”, Information about relevant geography wide disclosure are as follows:

Particulars For the year Period from
ended 14 December 2022 to
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue [rom gxternal customers
(i} Morth Aimerica (prmarily United States of America) 32,354,624 4,270,533
{it) Lurope (primarily United Kingdom) 4,418,548 1,207,842
{iii) Asia Pacific [primarily India) 4,245,758 995,839
{iv) Others 1,782,201 15,429
Total 42,801,131 6,519,643
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current assets *
(i} United States of America 9,103,887 10,623,042
{ii) Other countrias - -
« Mo current assets, other than financial instraments, goodwill snd income tax assels 9,103,887 10,623,042

(net)/defured tax asset {net).
Ne smgle esternal customer contributed 10% or more of the Group's revenue for Lhe year ended 31 March 2024,
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23 Delerad tax assely

DBaleqed tax awsels in relation ta:

Asat
11 March 2024

Asat
31 Masch 2023

Peopatty, Plant and Laoinment & Intangible Assets 44,134 939
Allowance lar bad debis 17,820 3
Delerred 1ax assots (net) N,ﬂll 931,.
{a) taaveinent in detaqed tax abitities los the year ended 31 March 2024 |s as Tullows:
Opening Ralance Closlng balance
Rucognised In Profit
en— of sy
Delerted Lok assets inrelation 1o
gioperty, Flant and Lguipment & intangible Avets ain 41,194 EERETY
Alteveance for bad daliy . L8 ERR TN
0139 1,065 #3004
(U} Movement in delemed tax abilities for the perdod entded 31 March 2023 iz as follows,
Opening Balance Tecognlyed In Prafit Closing balance
ar lnss
Delerred tax assets in relatian to:
todngible Assens ' a3y 9349
< 9 939
24 Related party disclosures
1 Fetationship with related paitics:
(a} Ultimate Pareat company
Fatetain Travel Téchnalagios Limited, India
() Parent company
RateGaln Technologies Inc, USA
(¢} Subsidiary company
KateGain Adara lapan Gk
(0] Companizs where significantinfluence is exersised by Kme's
Ratediain leghnnologies it U¥
1 S g L
ROV Saeeal 1L
() Kiey management pesonnel {Kar),
1. Givaou Chopra (Uirectorn)
(1) Transactions with related parties:
for the year Period from
ended 14 December 2022
Hature of Transaction " 31 March 2024 to 31 tarch 2023
Expense inchired by others on behall of the Company
Natgtiain Yechnalagies Ing., USA 539,864 2,411,797
fatutam fecduloxies Linmed, K 14030182 50,202
Rsteriain Srain & 1 95,601 26,148
fateGain Techoalagies L0 {UAL) -
BOY Soelat 1id
KateGain ravel fecinslogies timitei flndiad
Expense incurred by the Comppany an liehall af othies }
BLY Socnal LLC . 11,97
Myhotelshop GmbH 517 «
(1) Dutstanling Balances
Particulars As st Asat
. 31 March 2024 33 March 2023
(i) Fayables )
Fatetuei ectimndugivs e, U9A sw, 10 1,581,652
RaveGain Tetimolopies Limited, UK 244585 A61.462
[tareiain Sualn 5L 132,273 21,198
B Sl 1AL 117,544
WateGam Fravel Lechnolgges Lonted {india] 231,275
(ii) Hecelvahle
BV Sugial LE - 1L
By hataishiog Gmibii 1517 .
RateGain Techumlugio LLC (UAL) 105,536
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5 Falr value medsurements

i} Financial instruments by colegury

particulars: As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
FVTPL Amortised cost TVIPL Amortised cost

Finonglal assots

Trade ieceivables . 10,084, 495 - 4,547,913
Cash and cash equivalents . 4,212,410 v 2,869,544
Other financial assets - 330,411 171,797
Total - 14,627,219 - 7,889,254
Financial linhilitles

Irade payables . 5,304,400 . 5,543,559
Othe financial liabilites . 3,820,169 . 6,197,324
Total . 9,130,569 5 11,740,883

li} Falr value hlerarchy
Financial assets and financial Falilities measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet are divided into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are
delined based on the obgervability of significant inpuls t the measurement, a3 fallows;
Level 1; Quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for financial instruments.
Level 2: The falr valug of financial instruments that ace not traded in an active market is determined using véluation techniques which maximise the use of abservable

imarkel data rely as little as possible an entity specific estimates
Level 3; 1 one af more of te sigadicant INputs is not based an observable matkel data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Falr value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised costs
Tie Carrying amounts of tade receivabiles, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, vther bank balances, olher current financials assels and liabilities are considered

Lo be the same as their fair values, due to tieir short-term nature

4

For linanciol assets and liabilities st are measured ot fale vaiue, the carrying emounts are vqual to e fair values,

Hif) Fipanciol risk management
The Group's activities oxpose A to market sk, bguidity dsh ond credit sk The Company’s board of direciors has overall responsibility for the establishment and

oversight of the Campany's rish management {ramewatk. This note explains the sources af risk which the entity Is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and
the related impact in the financial statements,

Risk Exposure arksiog from tMeasurement Management
iffeaﬁ:'ii:_ N | Cost and cash equivalunts, tade .Tgmng st lysis Bank depusits, diversification of assel base, credit
receivablos, linaacial assets measured Himits and colfateral,

at amortised cost

Liguidity risk Other inancial abillities Rolling cash low lorecasts Avallability of committed credit lines.

a. Credit risk
Credit risk s the risk that a counterparty fails to dischae an ohligation to the Company. The Group's maximurm exposute to eradit rigk is limited to the carrying amaunt
of following types of financial atsets.
- eash and cash squivalents,
- trade receivables, and

otiver linancisl assets carcivd st omortised cost

a. Credit risk fecontimued)

The maximum exposure o credit Hisks is represented by the total carrying dmount of these financiai assets in \he belance sheet:
Asat As at

Partichlary ‘ 21 Macch 2024 31 March 2023
Trade teceivabiles 10,084,398 4,847,913
Cash and cash equivalents 4,212,410 2,869,544
Other current linancial assets 330,411 171,797

Credil tisk on cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits (shawn under other bank balancos) and ather financial assels s imited a5 the Group generally invests in
dizpasits with banks with high eredit ratings ausignud Gy domestic credit rating agencies. The joans priomarlly reprasents loan gven to related pantivs and vinployees,
Oher financial asgets messuted at smartized cost ncludes recelvables [rom related parties amit athers, Credit risk related to these other financial assots s managed by

ranitonng the ecovetability ol such amounts continuoudy.
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arlly fram related paities ond trade receivables.

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived lium revenue earned from custamers primarily located in United States of Ameriva and ather countrigs. The
Graup daes monitor the economic envirenment In which it operates. Thi Group manages its credit risk through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
continupusly menitoring credit worthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in the normasl caurse of kusiness. '

The wkpasure to the credit risk ot the reporting date is

The Group uses expected credit foss model to assess the impaitment loss, The Group uses provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade
suceivablus. The provision matrix takes inte acceunt avallable interngl crudit risk faclors such a3 tho Group's histerical experience for customers. However, the Group
Based upon past tends deternine ar impaiement slluwance for 10vs on feceivabivy (other than recelvables from related parties).

Refer Hote 6 far bifurcatian of trade recelvables inta credit inpaired and others.

Changes In the fuss allowance in respect of trade recelvables For the year For the period
endad 14 December 2022 to
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Dalance ot the beginmng of the yeot/period (659,228) .
Change tnimpairment allowances lor receivables (170,000} (659,228)
Balance at the ond of the year/period (B29,228) (659,228)

Tha management believas that no further provision is nacessary in rospecl of taade cocelvables hased on historical trends of thesa customars,

Refer nota 6 far the sgeing of trnde receivables at the reparting date

b Liguidity risk
Linuidity 1isk is the risk hat the Gronp may encounter difficalty in meeting its present and futurs abligations assoriated with financial liabilities that are required to be

sertled by delivedng cash or another finuncial aszer. The Group's abjective  to, al all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet ts cash and collateral
obiigatiuns. Ultimate tesponsibiliy for liquidity rsk management rests with the sharehalders. The Graup's manages figu ity risk by maintaining sdequate resedves and
Banking Taciities by continuously manitoring larecast and actual cash flows, end by matching the moturity profiles of inancial assets and liabilties. Management
manitars rollng forecasts of the Geoup's Tquidity pasition and cash and cath equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables Lelow analyse the Growy's linancisl labilities into rulevant maturily based an their contractual maturitios for all non dorlvative financial lahiities. The

amounts distlosed in the Lable are the contractual undiscaunted cash flows.

31 March 2024 Carrying amount Less than 1 year 1-5 year Mora than Total
S years

Non-derivatives
Trodde payables 5,304,400 5,304,a00 . 5,304,400
Other financial liahithies 3,820,163 3,350,442 A15327 - 3,826,104
Tutal 9,130,569 8,654,842 475,727 ? - 9,130,569
91 March 2023 Carrying amount Less than ) year 1-5 year More than Total

it il g 5 yoar§
Non-derivatives
Tiade payables 5,543,559 $,543,559 - . 5,513,559
Other Dinancial liatilities & 191,320 6,197,324 2 2 6,197,324
Tutal 11,740,883 | 11,740,083 . . 11,740,883 |

€. Market risk - Interost rate risk
The Grouy's puiicy Is 10 minimise interest 1ate cash flow iish exposures on long-teim linancing. At the reporting peried's und, the Group is not evposad to changas in

market Interest rotes as all burrowings snd deposits are at fixed interest rates.

d. Market risk « Price risk
Tt Graup does tot ve invetmenty held @i classified in e talance sheet at loir value thiough pralit or loss, Henee, the Group doas not have price risk,

26 Capital management policies and procadures
Tha Geoup's objective for capital management is W mariinize sharehiolder's value, saleguard business continuity and support the growth of the Group. The Group
datarmines the capital requirement hasad on annual epecating plan and other strategic investment plans. The Group aims to manage its capital efficiently so as te
saleguard its alility to continue as 8 joing concera and Lo aptmize returns (o all its sharehallers: The Group's funding requirements are met thraugh Equity infusions
and internal sccrusis: The Geoup has no debt as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024,
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26 Additional Regulotory Information

futlos
Particulars MNumerator Benominator " Note 315t March  31st March
2024 2023
| Cyreent Ratie Total cuerent assels Tatal current Liabilities 114 062
O Deht Eguily Ratio Total Debt Total Equity 1 NA NA
- Debt bervice Coverage Ratio Farning for Debit Service = Nat Prafit Debt service = Interest and lease 1 HA HA
alter takes 1 Non-cash opesating payitients « Principal repayments
erpunses ¢ nterest + Other non cash
adjusiment
Vo Retain on Eguity Profit (o the pecod less Preference Total Eguity 29, 26% 7196%
dhvidend (if any)
Vo aventony turnover Hevenue from operations Average Invantary 2 N NA
VI Trade Receivable wirnover Ratio Hewvenue from pperations Trade leczlvables 4,24 1.34
VIl Trade Payable turmover Ratio Cost of External Services Trade Payable 179 .27
Vil Net Capital Turnover ratio Revenue lrom operations Warking Capital (i.e. Total
current assets less Total current
fiabilities 2289 (1.33)
1% Nat Profit Ratia profit for the period Revenue fromoperations 15.66% 19.80%
X Return on capital employed Profit before tax and linance costs Caphtal employed = Nat worth 37.47% 9.35%
Kl et on invesimant Final value of investment - Initial Value of
Iivestiment Initial Value of Investment 3 NA NA

The Group does not have any debtand hence the stated analytical rauio s not applicable,
2 The Groug is in service sector and hance inventary turnaver ratio is nat applicable to the Company-
The Group does not have any investiment and hence the stated analytical ratio is not applicable.

2

=

The figures [or the corresponding pi

Ae per pur fepoi of even dale atlached
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Firm's Registration Number: 134427W

A

oy
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wyjous period have bren regrouped / eclassified wherever necessary,

to make them comparable.
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I.  Inmovilizado intangible .. . ........ ... ... ... ... .. L 11100
1. Desarrollo. .. ... 11110
2. CONCESIONES ...ttt ittt e e 11120
3. Patentes, licencias, marcas y similares . . ........... ... ... ... ... 11130
4. Fondode COmercio ...............uiiuiiniiniinninnanan. 11140
5. Aplicaciones informaticas. . . ........... . 11150
6. Investigacion . ...... ... ... 11160
7. Propiedadintelectual ......... .. ... ... .. ... 11180
8. Otroinmovilizadointangible . .. ........ .. .. .. .. ... . o 11170
Il Inmovilizado material. .. ...................coooeeeeieeii... 11200 21.587,15 22.227,08
1. Terrenos y CONStrUCCIONES . . . ..o ut ittt 11210
2. Instalaciones técnicas y otro inmovilizado material ................ 11220 21.587,15 22.227,08
3. Inmovilizado encursoy anticipos ............. .. .., 11230
lll. Inversiones inmobiliarias .................... .. ... ... ... ... 11300
1. TeITeNOS . . oot 11310
2. ConstrucCiones . ....... ... 11320
IV. Inversiones en empresas del grupo y asociadas a largo plazo. . . 11400
1. Instrumentos de patrimonio . ............. ... ... ... 11410
2. CréditosSaempresas . ......o.viii i s 11420
3. \Valores representativosdedeuda ............. ... ... ... ..., 11430
4. Derivados. .. ... 11440
5. Ofros activos financieros . ........ ... ... .. .. . . 11450
6. Otrasinversiones . ................iiuiiiiiiiiinniniiann. 11460
V. Inversiones financieras alargoplazo....................... 11500 9.145,12 15.000,00
1. Instrumentos de patrimonio . ............. ... ... . .. 11510
2. Créditosaterceros. ... ... ... 11520
3. \Valores representativosdedeuda ................ ... ... ... ..., 11530
4. Derivados. . ... .. 11540
5. Otros activos financieros . ............ ... ... i 11550 9.145,12
6. Otrasinversiones . .............i.iuiiiiiii 11560 15.000,00
VI. Activos por impuestodiferido ........................ ... ... 11600
VIl. Deudores comerciales nocorrientes ........................ 11700

(1) Marque la casilla correspondiente segln exprese las cifras en unidades, miles o millones de euros.

(2) Ejercicio al que van referidas las cuentas anuales.
(3) Ejercicio anterior.

Todos los documentos que integran las cuentas anuales deben elaborarse en la misma unidad.




NO APTO PARA SU PRESENTACION COMO DEPOSITO EN PAPEL EN EL REGISTRO MERCANTIL

BALANCE DE SITUACION NORMAL

B1.2

NIF: B66662511

DENOMINACION SOCIAL:

RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN,
S.L.U

Espacio destinad p ra las firmas de los administradores

ACTIVO

NOTAS DE
LA MEMORIA

EJERCICIO _ 2023 (1)

EJERCICIO _ 2022 (2)

B) ACTIVOCORRIENTE .. ... ... ... . . i
. Activos no corrientes mantenidos paralaventa.............

. Existencias ............ ... . ... ... . ...
1. Comerciales . .. ... ...
2. Materias primas y otros aprovisionamientos . .. ..................
a) Materias primas y otros aprovisionamientos a largo plazo. . . . ... ..
b) Materias primas y otros aprovisionamientos a corto plazo. . . . ... ..

3. Productos encurso ............. ...
a) De ciclo largo de producccion. . .. ......... .. ...
b) De ciclo corto de produccion. . ............. ... .. ...
4. Productos terminados . ............ .
a) De ciclo largo de producccion. . .. ......... .. ...
b) De ciclo corto de produccion. . ............. ... ... ..
5. Subproductos, residuos y materiales recuperados .. ..............
6. Anticipos a proveedores. . . ... .. ..
lll. Deudores comerciales y otras cuentasacobrar..............
1. Clientes por ventas y prestaciones de servicios ..................
a) Clientes por ventas y prestaciones de servicios a largo plazo. . . . . ..
b) Clientes por ventas y prestaciones de servicios a corto plaza .. . . . ..
2. Clientes empresas del grupoyasociadas . . .....................
3. Deudoresvarios. ... .......... .
4. Personal. ... ...
5. Activos por impuesto corriente. . ... ... ...
6. Otros créditos con las Administraciones Publicas ... ..............
7. Accionistas (socios) por desembolsos exigidos. .. ................
IV. Inversiones en empresas del grupo y asociadas a corto plazo . .
1. Instrumentos de patrimonio . ....... ... .. ...
2. Créditosaempresas . ...t
3. Valores representativosdedeuda .. .............. ... ... .. .....
4. Derivados. . .. ...

5. Oftros activos financieros . .. ......... ... ... . .

6. Ofrasinversiones. ... ............

12000

2.516.551,67

2.322.537,06

12100

12200

12210

12220

12221

12222

12230

12231

12232

12240

12241

12242

12250

12260

12300

223.205,19

407.963,35

12310

170.833,53

380.268,90

12311

12312

170.833,53

380.268,90

12320

12330

52.371,66

27.694,45

12340

12350

12360

12370

12400

2.127.808,21

1.868.993,26

12410

12420

12430

12440

12450

2.127.808,21

1.868.993,26

12460

(1) Ejercicio al que van referidas las cuentas anuales.
(2) Ejercicio anterior.




NO APTO PARA SU PRESENTACION COMO DEPOSITO EN PAPEL EN EL REGISTRO MERCANTIL

BALANCE DE SITUACION NORMAL

B1.3

NIF: B66662511

DENOMINACION SOCIAL:

RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN,
S.L.U

vl

Espacio de tiHado para las firmas de los administradores

ACTIVO

NOTAS DE
LA MEMORIA

EJERCICIO _ 2023 (1)

EJERCICIO _ 2022 (2)

V. Inversiones financieras acortoplazo ........................
1. Instrumentos de patrimonio .. ....... ... .. .. ...
2. CréditoS @ empresas . . ... ..ottt
3. \Valoresrepresentativosdedeuda . ............... ... ... . ......
4. Derivados. . ...
5. Oftros activos financieros . ... ....... ... ... .. i
6. Oftrasinversiones............ ... ...
VI. Periodificaciones acortoplazo .............................
VII. Efectivo y otros activos liquidos equivalentes. . . ... ...........
1. Tesoreria ... ...
2. Oftros activos liquidos equivalentes . . . .........................

TOTALACTIVO (A+B) ...

12500

12510

12520

12530

12540

12550

12560

12600

29.991,38

10.453,58

12700

135.546,89

35.126,87

12710

135.546,89

35.126,87

12720

10000

2.547.283,94

2.359.764,14

(1) Ejercicio al que van referidas las cuentas anuales.
(2) Ejercicio anterior.




NO APTO PARA SU PRESENTACION COMO DEPOSITO EN PAPEL EN EL REGISTRO MERCANTIL

BALANCE DE SITUACION NORMAL

B2.1

B66662511

NIF:

DENOMINACION SOCIAL:

RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN,
S.L.U

Espe

gstinado para las firmas de los administradores

PATRIMONIO NETO Y PASIVO

NOTAS DE
LA MEMORIA

EJERCICIO _ 2023 (1)

EJERCICIO _ 2022 (2)

A) PATRIMONIONETO ........ ... .
A-1) Fondos propios ............... .o
l. Capital . ... ... ...
1. Capitalescriturado . ........ ... . .. . .
2. (Capital noexigido) . . .. ...t
Il.  Primadeemisiéon .............. ... ... .. ... ... .. ... ...
lll. Reservas ........... ... .. i
1. Legal y estatutarias

2. Otras reservas

3. Reservaderevalorizacion ............. ... ... .. .. il
4. Reservade capitalizacion . ........... .. ... . i
IV. (Acciones y participaciones en patrimonio propias)
V. Resultados de ejercicios anteriores .. .......................

1. Remanente .. ........ ...

2. (Resultados negativos de ejercicios anteriores)

VI. Ofras aportacionesdesocios ..............................

VIl. Resultado del ejercicio

VIIl. (Dividendoacuenta) ........... ... ... .. ... ... ... ... ...

IX. Otros instrumentos de patrimonioneto . .....................

A-2) Ajustes por cambiosdevalor ..............................

. Activos financieros a valor razonable con cambios en el
patrimonioneto. . ...... ... ... .. ..

Il. Operacionesdecobertura.................................

lll.  Activos no corrientes y pasivos vinculados, mantenidos para la
venta .. ...

A-3) Subvenciones, donaciones y legados recibidos. . .. ...........
B) PASIVONOCORRIENTE ............. ... ... ... i,
. Provisionesalargoplazo ............ ... ... ... .. ... ... ...,
1. Obligaciones por prestaciones a largo plazo al personal
2. Actuaciones medioambientales

3. Provisiones por reestructuracion . ........... ... L.
4. Otras proviSioNeS . .. ..ot
Il. Deudasalargoplazo ................ ... ... ... ...

1. Obligaciones y otros valores negociables

20000

399.862,93

354.862,47

21000

399.862,93

354.862,47

21100

3.000,00

3.000,00

21110

3.000,00

3.000,00

21120

21200

21300

49.176,00

4.175,54

21310

600,00

600,00

21320

48.576,00

3.575,54

21330

21350

21400

21500

233.193,93

164.775,95

21510

233.193,93

164.775,95

21520

21600

114.493,00

114.493,00

21700

68.417,98

21800

21900

22000

22100

22200

22300

22400

22500

23000

31000

31100

31110

31120

31130

31140

31200

31210

(1) Ejercicio al que van referidas las cuentas anuales.
(2) Ejercicio anterior.




NO APTO PARA SU PRESENTACION COMO DEPOSITO EN PAPEL EN EL REGISTRO MERCANTIL

BALANCE DE SITUACION NORMAL

B2.2

NIF:

DENOMINACION SOCIAL:

RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN,

B66662511

S.L.U. 1
Espaf ti‘nado para las firmas de los administradores
NOTAS DE
PATRIMONIO NETO Y PASIVO LAMEMORIA| EJERCICIO _ 2023 (1) | EJERCICIO _2022 (2)

2. Deudas con entidadesdecrédito. .............. ... ... .. ..... 31220
3.  Acreedores por arrendamiento financiero . ..................... 31230
4. Derivados . . ..... ... 31240
5.  Oftros pasivos financCieros . ... .......... i 31250
lll. Deudas con empresas del grupo y asociadas a largo plazao . .. 31300
IV. Pasivos por impuesto diferida .. ......................... 31400
V. Periodificacionesalargoplazo .......................... 31500
VI. Acreedores comercialesnocorrientes . ................... 31600
VIl. Deuda con caracteristicas especiales alargoplazo............ 31700
C) PASIVO CORRIENTE .. ... ...\ 32000 2.147.421,01 2.004.901,67
. Pasivos vinculados con activos no corrientes mantenidos para

laventa. ... ... ... .. ... 32100
Il. Provisionesacortoplazo............................... 32200
1. Provisiones por derechos de emision de gases de efecto invernadero . | 32210
2. Ofras provisiones . . .. ... i 32220
lll. Deudasacortoplazo................. ... . ... ... ........ 32300 -1.424,73
1. Obligaciones y otros valores negociables ... ................... 32310
2. Deudas conentidadesdecrédito. . ............. ... .. ... ...... 32320
3. Acreedores por arrendamiento financiero . ........... ... ... ... 32330
4. Derivados . . ... 32340
5.  Oftros pasivos financCieros . .. ... 32350 -1.424,73
IV. Deudas con empresas del grupo y asociadas a corto plaza. .. 32400 1.866.273,24 1.866.138,68
V. Acreedores comerciales y otras cuentas apagar. ........... 32500 282.572,50 138.762,99
1. Proveedores.............. ... 32510
a) Proveedores alargoplazo. ................. i 32511
b)  Proveedores acorto plazo. ................ i 32512
2. Proveedores, empresas del grupoy asociadas . .. ............... 32520
3. AcCreedores Varios. . . ... 32530 -31.725,18 17.684,29
4.  Personal (remuneraciones pendientesde pago) . . .. ............. 32540
5.  Pasivos por impuesto corriente .. ..... ... . 32550 91.068,92 18.301,58
6.  Ofras deudas con las Administraciones Publicas. . ............... 32560 223.228,76 102.777,12
7. Anticiposdeclientes. ... ... ... ... . 32570
VI. Periodificacionesacortoplazo........................... 32600
VIl. Deuda con caracteristicas especiales a cortoplazo. ........... 32700
TOTAL PATRIMONIO NETOY PASIVO (A+B+C).................. 30000 2.547.283,94 2.359.764,14

(1) Ejercicio al que van referidas las cuentas anuales.
(2) Ejercicio anterior.




NO APTO PARA SU PRESENTACION COMO DEPOSITO EN PAPEL EN EL REGISTRO MERCANTIL

CUENTA DE PERDIDAS Y GANANCIAS NORMAL

P1.1

NIF: B66662511

DENOMINACION SOCIAL:

RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN,

S.L.U.
Espacip dest n\k‘ido para las firmas de los administradores
~ NOTAS DE
(DEBE) / HABER LA MEMORIA| EJERCICIO _2023 (1) | EJERCICIO _2022 (2)

A) OPERACIONES CONTINUADAS
1. Importe neto de lacifrade negocios . ....................... 40100 2.853.939,21 2.036.902,39
) Ventas. .. ... 40110
b) Prestaciones deservicios. ........ ... .. ... 40120 2.853.939,21 2.036.902,39
c) Ingresos de caracter financiero de las sociedades holding . .. ...... 40130
2. Variacion de existencias de productos terminados y en curso de

fabricacion . .. ... ... .. .. 40200
3. Trabajos realizados por la empresa parasu activo ............ 40300
4. Aprovisionamientos. ... ........ .. ... 40400
a) Consumode mercaderias ................ i, 40410
b)  Consumo de materias primas y otras materias consumibles. . ... ... 40420
c) Trabajos realizados porotrasempresas ....................... 40430
d) Deterioro de mercaderias, materias primas y otros aprovisionamientos. | 40440
5. Otros ingresos deexplotacion . ............................ 40500
a) Ingresos accesorios y otros de gestion corriente .. . ... ... ... 40510
b)  Subvenciones de explotacion incorporadas al resultado del ejercicio. | 40520
6. Gastosdepersonal .................... ... 40600 -2.269.022,03 -1.671.855,80
a) Sueldos, salariosy asimilados. . ............................. 40610 -1.947.695,44 -1.366.071,72
b) CargassoCiales .. ........ ... 40620 -321.326,59 -305.784,08
C) Provisiones. ... ... .. 40630
7. Otros gastosde explotacién. .............................. 40700 -395.591,01 -261.319,81
a)  Servicios exteriores .. ............ ... 40710 -395.591,01 -261.049,88
B)  THDUIOS. - - o oo oo 40720 -269,93
c) Pérdidas, deterioro y variacién de provisiones por operaciones

COMErCIales . ... ... 40730
d) Otros gastos de gestién corriente. . . ......... ... ... ... ... 40740
e) Gastos por emision de gases de efecto invernadero . .. ........... 40750
8.  Amortizacién del inmovilizado . ............................ 40800 -6.268,30 -5.769,71
9. Imputaciéon de subvenciones de inmovilizado no financiero y

ofras. ... ... ... ... 40900
10. Excesos de provisiones . ................ ... 41000
11. Deterioro y resultado por enajenaciones del inmovilizado . . .. .. 41100
a) Deterioroypérdidas. ............ ... .. ... 41110
b) Resultados por enajenacionesyotras. . ....................... 41120
c) Deterioro y resultados por enajenaciones del inmovilizado de las

sociedades holding . ...... ... ... . 41130
12. Diferencia negativa de combinaciones de negocio ............ 41200

&=

Ejercicio al que van referidas las cuentas anuales.
Ejercicio anterior.
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NOTAS DE
(DEBE) / HABER LAMEMORIA | EJERCICIO 2023 (1) | EJERCICIO _ 2022 (2)

13. Oftros resultados........... F T 41300 -26,99
A 5E+Sg|$T3A9235Ef¢)s(T:ﬁTQEIST10+ M+12+13) ............ 49100 183.057.87 97.930,08
14. Ingresos financieros ............. ... ... ... 41400
a) De participaciones en instrumentos de patrimonio ................ 41410
a1) Enempresasdelgrupoyasociadas .......................... 41411
@2) ENterceros ... ... ...t 41412
b)  De valores negociables y otros instrumentos financieros .......... 41420
b 1) De empresas del grupoy asociadas .......................... 41421
b2) Deterceros . .. ... .. 41422
c) Imputacion de subvenciones, donaciones y legados de caracter

financiero . ... ... ... 41430
15. Gastos financieros . .............. ... ... ...l 41500
a) Pordeudas con empresas del grupoy asociadas  ................ 41510
b) Pordeudas conterceros .............. ... ... 41520
c)  Poractualizacion de provisiones .............. ... 41530
16. Variacion de valor razonable en instrumentos financieros ...... 41600
a) Valor razonable con cambios en pérdidas y ganancias ............ 41610
b)  Transferencia de ajustes de valor razonable con cambios en el

patrimonioneto . ......... .. ... e 41620
17. Diferenciasdecambio ................ ... . i, 41700 -24.996,87 -6.697.11
18. Deterioro y resultado por enajenaciones de instrumentos

financieros .. ... ... 41800
a) Deteriorosypérdidas ........... ... .. 41810
b)  Resultados por enajenacionesyotras ......................... 41820
19. Otros ingresos y gastos de caracter financiero ............... 42100
a) Incorporacion al activo de gastos financieros .................... 42110
b)  Ingresos financieros derivados de convenios de acreedores . ....... 42120
c) Restodeingresosygastos ............. ... ... 42130
A.2) RESULTADO FINANCIERO (14+15+16+17+18+19) ........ 49200 -24.996,87 -6.697,11
A.3) RESULTADO ANTES DE IMPUESTOS (A1+A2).............. 49300 158.061,00 91.232,97
20. Impuestos sobre beneficios ............................... 41900 -41.732,35 -22.814,99
P CONTINUADAS (834 20) oo s OT et ONES | 4oaog 116.328,65 68.417.98
B) OPERACIONES INTERRUMPIDAS
21. Resultado del ejercicio procedente de operaciones

interrumpidas neto de impuestos . . ............. ... ... ...... 42000
A.5) RESULTADO DEL EJERCICIO (A.4+21) ..................... 49500 116.328,65 68.417,98

(1) Ejercicio al que van referidas las cuentas anuales.
(2) Ejercicio anterior.
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Strategic Report
for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

The directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Business review

RateGain Technologies Limited, UK (RateGain UK), is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, incorporated on
December 5, 2014, under the laws of England and Wales. RateGain UK specializes in the development and sales of
Data-as-a-Service (DaaS), Distribution, and Marketing Technology (Martech) products specifically designed for the travel
and hospitality sectors. Its target customers include hotels, online travel agencies (OTAs), airlines, and car rental companies.
Our 3-year goal is to be the most dominant player in areas of revenue maximization, distribution and guest experience
technologies for travel and hospitality industry, with a longer-term vision of being the most valuable Hospitality and Travel
Tech Company in the world.

RateGain Technologies, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has entered into Asset Purchase Agreement
(APA) dated January 2, 2023 with Adara Inc. and Fortis Advisors LLC to acquire business of Adara Inc., a leader in data
collection and management in the travel and hospitality space through its subsidiary RateGain Adara Inc.

During the previous year the Company has incorporated a new wholly owned subsidiary RateGain Technologies LLC in
UAE.

Key Performance Indicators ("KPI'")
The performance during the year, together with historical trend data is set out in the table below:

£
2024 2023 Movement
Turnover 24,525,024 16,366,710 50%
Operating Profit 1,145,325 1,548,022 (26%)
Profit before taxation 264,848 1,030,127 (74%)

As compared to last year turnover of the company has increased by GBP 8,158,314 and operating profit decreased by GBP
402,697.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Company operates in Software as a Service (Saas) markets catering to travel and hospitality segments and faces a
number of risks and uncertainty.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is managed by maintaining a balance between the funding requirements to support operational and other
activities and the bank balances available. The company's liquidity risk management includes short-term cash projections
and considering the level of liquid assets in relation thereto, and monitoring balance sheet liquidity on a frequent basis.

Commercial Risk

The markets and segments the company operates within are intensely competitive, rapidly changing, and highly fragmented,
as current competitors expand their product offerings and new companies enter the market. Competitors vary in size and in
the scope and breadth of the products offered.

These expected results are subject to risks and uncertainties including without limitation the following: (a) demand for the
Company's software may decline, causing a decline in demand. (b) the company may not be successful in delivering
services that satisfy customer requirements, which could result in decreased customer demand, or claims by customers, (c)
other companies are capable of providing better products which may increase their market share.

Credit risk:

Customers comprise large corporates with low credit risk. There are not considered to be any material risks relating to
individual customers or business partners. Trade debtors are also managed in respect of credit and cash flow risk by policies
concerning the credit offered to customers and the regular monitoring of amounts outstanding for both time and credit
limits. :
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Strategic Report
for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

Interest rate risk:
The Company owes amount to group company on which interest is payable. However, there are not considered to be any
material risk regarding interest rate.

Human Resources
The Company is aware that its performance is only as good as the people it employs.Therefore it attempts to have policies
in place to attract, retain and motivate its employees to help achieve is business objectives.

Forex Risk
The Company deals with all major currencies like GBP, EUR and USD Volatility in currency may impact the results of the

Company adversely.

Future developments

The Company will continue to focus on growth via acquisition of new businesses along addition of new services. It is active
in the Mergers and Acquisition (M&A) market and continuously seeking opportunities to acquire business in the
distribution sector. In addition, the Company will continue to focus on growth via organic strategies, by upselling and cross
selling products, to support the future M&A and investment in new products of the holding company i.e. RateGain Travel
Technologies Ltd (India).

Directors Statement of Compliance with duty to promote success of the Company

The Company's directors consider, both individually and together, that they have acted in the way which they consider, in
good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its shareholders. They have also
considered the Company's other stakeholders and matters set out in section 172(1)(a) to (f) of the Companies Act 2006 in
the decisions taken during the financial year ended 31 March 2024. In doing the duties, the directors must have regard
(amongst other matters) to:

« the likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

« the interests of the Company employees

+ the need to foster the Company's business relationships with customers, suppliers and others;

« the impact of the Company's operations on the community and the environment;

+ the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
+ the need to act fairly as between members of the Company

The Board fully understands its duty under section 172 (1) of the Companies Act, 2006 to ensure they promote the success
of the Company for the benefits of its members. The Board is aware of all stakeholder interests, and as such takes a
long-term view in making key decisions, and when such decisions are taken, the board acts in the interests of such
shareholders and ensures all stakeholders are treated fairly.

APPROVED AND AUTHORIZED BY THE BOARD ON::
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Report of the Directors
for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

The directors present their report with the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The Company's software solutions allow hospitality businesses to engage with travellers and help revenue, distribution and
marketing departments to drive revenue by providing accurate, real-time and meaningful insights.

DIVIDENDS
No dividends will be distributed for the year ended 31 March 2024.

DIRECTORS
The directors shown below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 April 2023 to the date of this report:

Bhanu Chopra
Aditi Gupta

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
There have been no significant events affecting the company since the year end.

DIRECTOR INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions ( as defined by section 234 of the companies Act 2006) were in force during the
course of the year ended 31 March 2024 for the benefit of the Director in relation to certain losses and liabilities which they
may incur (or have incurred) in connection with their duties, powers or office.

GOING CONCERN

At the time of approving the financial statements, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate
resource to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, thus director continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing of financial statements.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Report of the Directors and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law, the directors must not approve
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and
of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether they have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards in
conformity with the requirements of Companies Act 2006

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Report of the Directors

for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act
2006) of which the company's auditors are unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have
taken as a director in order to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
company's auditors are aware of that information.

AUDITORS
The auditors, PBG Associates Limited, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forthcoming Board Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
RateGain Technologies Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of RateGain Technologies Limited (the 'company’) for the year ended
31 March 2024 which comprise the Income Statement, Other Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes
in Equity and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a2 summary of significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2024 and of its profit for the year then
ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards en Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law, Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.  We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Conclusions relating to going conecern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in

the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concem are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information in the Strategic Repert, the Report of the Directors and the Statement of
Directors' Responsibilities, but does not include the financial statements and our Report of the Auditors thereon. The
directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent maferial misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
RateGain Technologies Limited

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Report of the Directors.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,

in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on page four, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Auditors that includes our opinion, Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or emror and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the
primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with those charged with governance of the company.

Our approach was as follows:

- We obtained a general understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the company and
determined that there are no significant laws and regulations except for company's legisiation and the financial reporting
framework (UK GAAP). We obtained a general understanding of how the company is complying with those frameworks by
making enquiries of management and those responsible for legal and compliance matters of the Company.

- The Company's principal activity was that in the travel and hospitality industry. As such the Senior Statutory Auditor
considered the experience and expertise of the engagement team to ensure that the team had the appropriate competence and
capabilities, which included the use of specialists where appropriate.

- Enquiries with the management concerning any actual or potential litigation or claims; inspection of relevant legal
correspondence if any; review of board minutes; testing the appropriateness of entries in the nominal ledger, including
journal entries; reviewing transactions around the end of the reporting period; and the performance of analytical procedures
to identify unexpected movements in account balances which may be indicative of fraud

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at www.frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Report of the Auditors.
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Report of the Independent Audnors to the Members of
RateGain Technologies Lim ited

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are
required fo state to them in a Report of the Auditors and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed,

(—O—

" Mr. Hitesh Gadhia (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PBG Associates Limited
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
65 Delamere Road

Hayes, Middlesex

UB4 ONN

Date: 182024 .o
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Income Statement

for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

TURNOVER

Cost of sales

GROSS PROFIT
Administrative expenses

OPERATING PROFIT

Interest payable and similar expenses
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Tax on profit

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

31.3.24
Notes £

3 24,525,024
17,718,713

6,806,311
5,660,986
5 1,145,325
6 880,477
264,848
7 67,316
197,532

The notes form part of these financial statements
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31.3:.23
£

16,366,710

12,918,529

3,448,181

1,900,159

1,548,022

517,895

1,030,127

201,954

828,173



RateGain Technologies Limited

Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

Notes

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

31.3.24
£

197,532

197,532

The notes form part of these financial statements
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RateGain Technologies Limited (Registered number: 09343667)

Balance Sheet
31 March 2024

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital

Share premium

Retained earnings

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on

and were signed on its behalf by:

31324
Notes £ £
8 &
] 17,598
10 39,925,500
39,943,098
11 6,508,930
1,932,264
8,441,194
12 10,137,583
(1,696,389)
38,246,709
13 141
14 33,655,096
14 4,591,472
38,246,709

The notes form part of these financial statements
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31.3.23
£ £

11,033

9,477

39,925,500

39,946,010
8,050,270
397,527
8,447,797
25,367,122

(16,919,325)

23,026,685

135

18,632,610

4,393,940

23,026,685



RateGain Technologies Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

Balance at 1 April 2022

Changes in equity
Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 March 2023
Changes in equity
Issue of share capital

Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 March 2024

Called up
share Retained Share Total
capital garnings premium equity
£ £ £ £
135 3,565,767 18,632,610 22,198,512
- 828,173 - 828,173
135 4,393,940 18,632,610 23,026,685
6 - 15,022,486 15,022,492
- 197,532 - 197,532
141 4,591,472 33,655,096 38,246,709

The notes form part of these financial statements
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

L.

STATUTORY INFORMATION

Rategain Technologies Limited ("the company") is a private company limited by shares domiciled and incorporated
in England and Wales. The company's registered address is 6th Floor 9 Appold Street London EC2A 2AP.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" and the Companies Act 2006. The financial
staterments have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" ("FRS 102") and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The
financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary amounts in
these financial statements are rounded to the nearest pound.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention. The principal accounting policies
adopted are set out below.

Cash flow exemption

The company, being member of the group wherein the parent company prepares consolidated financial statements
which are publicly available, is exempt from the requirement to draw up a cash flow statement in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standard 102.

Related party exemption

The company has taken advantage of exemption, under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', not to disclose related party
transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries within the group.

Going concern

At the time of approving the financial statements, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has
adequate resource to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, thus director continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing of financials statements.

Group accounts

The Company's financial statements present information about it as an individual undertaking and not about its
group because the Company is 100% owned by RateGain Travel Technologies Limited a Public listed company in
India. The Company's and group's financial statement will be consolidated by RateGain Travel Technologies
limited, parent company, registered in India. The Company has taken the exemption from preparing group accounts
under Companies Act 2006.
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements
The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the most significant effect on amounts
recognised in the financial statements.

Impairment of intangible assets:

The directors have performed an impairment review of its intangible assets using an income approach utilising the
discounted cash flow technique and based on assumptions provided by independent valuers. This requires forecasts
of items such as revenue, operating costs, and capital spending requirements. A cost approach, that estimates the
replacement cost, and a relief-from-royalty method, which quantifies the cost savings associated with not having to
pay a third party to licence comparable technology, has been utilised for its computer software intangible.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities are as follows.

Bad debt provision
The directors have provided for specific old debts not deemed recoverable. The amount consists of any amounts
older than 365 days, and any other debts less than 365 days old that are not expected to be recovered.

Turnover
Turnover is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates,

value added tax and other sales taxes.

Turnover is representing the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for revenue management software
services provided in the normal course of business, and is shown net of VAT and other sales related taxes. Turnover
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of services are to be provided. The fair value of consideration
takes into account trade discounts, settlement discounts and volume rebates.

Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent include cash in hand, deposit held at call with bank, other short term liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdraft are shown within borrowing in current liabilities.

Intangible fixed assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives on the following bases:

Software 3 - 5 years straight line

continued...



RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

2% ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives on the following bases:

Computers and Peripheral 4 years straight line

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Fixed asset investments

Equity investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss, except for those equity investments that are not
publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be measured reliably, which are recognised at cost less
impairment until a reliable measure of fair value becomes available.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting period end date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

The carrying amount of the investments accounted for using the equity method is tested for impairment as a single
asset.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to apply.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated

as a revaluation increase.

Page 15 continued...



RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments
The company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 'Basic Financial Instruments' and Section 12 'Other
Financial Instruments Issues' of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the company's balance sheet when the company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when there is a
Jegally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at transaction price
including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest m ethod unless
the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of the
future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial assets classified as receivable within one year are
not amortised.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment

at each reporting end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been affected. If an asset is
impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

If there is a decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not exceed what the carrying
amount would have been, had the impairment not previously been recognised. The impairment reversal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
settled, or when the company transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
another entity, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership are retained but control of the asset has
transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party.

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the company after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies and preference shares
that are classified as debt, are initially recognised at transaction price unless the arrangement constitutes a financing
transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a
market rate of interest. Financial liabilities classified as payable within one year are not amortised.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

continued...




RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

2,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the company's contractual obligations expire or are discharged or
cancelled.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Dividends
payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the discretion of the company.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the profit and loss account because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The company's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting end date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all fiming differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future
taxable profits. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the timing difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting end date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are offset if, and only if, there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains and losses arising on translation
are included in the profit and loss account for the period.
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits is recognised as a liability and a expense, unless those cost are required to
be recognised as a part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.

The costs of any unused holiday entitlements are recognised in the period in which the employee's service are
received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably committed to
terminate the employment of an employee or the provide termination benefits.

Retirement benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Share-based payment

The cost and corresponding increase in equity in respect of equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
employees are measured by reference to the fair value of equity instruments issued at the date of grant. Amounts
are expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period based on the estimate of shares that will eventually vest
and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Further detail is provided in note 18.

TURNOVER
31.3.24 31323
£ £
Turnover analysed by class of business
Software services 24,525,024 16,366,710
31.3.24 31.3.23
Turnover analysed by geographical market £ £
United States of America 8,689,907 11,053,380
Europe 10,306,625 4,366,301
Rest of the world 5,528,491 947.119
24,525,024 16,366,710
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

4. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS

31.3.24 31.3.23

Number Number

Number of Sales and support staff 12 8
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

31.3.24 31.3.23

£ £

Wages and salaries 1,779,937 806,000

Social security costs 158,638 87,970

Pension costs 29,063 24,194

Employee Stock Option Plan expenses 2,855 2,653

Staff Welfare Expense 34,571 25,624

2,005,064 946.441

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Company in an independently administered fund. The pension cost charge represents contributions
payable by the Company to the fund and amounted to GBP 29,063 (2023: GBP 24,194) and the at year end GBP
7,324 (2023: GBP 13,786)

There is no remuneration paid to directors during the current year. (2023: NIL)

5. OPERATING PROFIT

31.3.24 31.3.23

£ £
Operating profit for the year is stated after charging:
Auditors' remuneration 5,000 5,000
IT and Telecom charges 173,845 256,063
Provision for doubtful debts 519,727 279,885
Foreign exchange differences, net 440,409 (713.864)

6. INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES
31.3.24 31.3.23

£ £

Interest on Loan 880,477 517,895
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

T TAXATION

Total tax charged for the year

The actual charge for the year can be reconciled to the expected charge based
on the profit or loss and the standard rate of tax as follows:

Profit before taxation

Expected tax credit based on the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
of 25.00% (2023: 19.00%)

Permanent capital allowances in excess of depreciation

Others

8. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

COST
At 1 April 2023
and 31 March 2024

AMORTISATION
At 1 April 2023
Amortisation for year

At 31 March 2024

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023

Page 20

31.3.24 31.3.23
£ £
67316 201.954
31.3.24 31.3.23
£ £
264,848 1,030,127
66,212 195,724
576 2,811
528 3419
67316 201,954
Computer
software
£
56,073
45,040
11,033
56,073
11,033
continued...



RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

9:

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

COST

At 1 April 2023
Additions

At 31 March 2024
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2023
Charge for year

At 31 March 2024

NET BOOK YALUE
At 3] March 2024

At 31 March 2023

Page 21

Computer
equipment
&

31,994
12,950

44,944
22,517
4,829

27,346

continued...



RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

10. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

COST £
At 1 April 2023 39,925,500
At 31 March 2023 39,925,500
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2024 39,925,500
At 31 March 2023 39.925.500
Details of the company's Subsidiaries as on 31.3.2024 are as follows
Name of Registered Principal Activity | Class of Capital Profit % Held
undertaking Office shares held | and (loss) for
Reserves £ | the year £
Direet Indirect
RateGain United States Distribution as a Ordinary 44,339,130 4,750,184 100 -
Technologies Inc Service
RateGain Spain Distribution as a Ordinary 184,498 49,290 100 -
Technologies Service and
Spain Marketing
BCV Social LLC | United States | Marketing and Ordinary 2,171,515 | (1,754,705) - 100
Advertising
MyHotelshop Germany Marketing and Ordinary 2,440,097 606,191 100 -
Gmbh Advertising
RateGain UAE Distribution as a Ordinary 427,376 405,810 100 -
Technologies Service
LLC
Rategain Adara United States Distribution as a Ordinary 18,149,061 5,310,330 B 100
Inc. Service
Name of undertaking Registered Office
RateGain Technologies Inc | 5960 Berkshire Ln, 6th floor, Dallas, TX 75225
RateGain Technologies Barcelona, Spain3rd Floor, 1st Gate, Avinguda Diagonal, 439
Spain Barcelona 08036 Spain
BCV Social LLC 223 W Erie St 2NW, Chicago, Illinois 60654
MyHotelshop Gmbh FloBplatz 6, 04107 Leipzig, Germany
RateGain Technologies Sharjah Media City, Sharjah, UAE
LLC
Rategain Adara Inc. 300 Creek View Road, Suite 209, Newark DE 19711, New Castle
County
Page 22 continued...




RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

11. DEBTORS

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors

Other debtors

Amount recoverable from related party
VAT recoverable

Prepayments

Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Deferred tax asset
Prepayments

Aggregate amounts

12. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade creditors

Social security and other taxes
Other creditors

Deferred consideration®
Accruals and Deferred Income
Payable to related parties#
Corporation Tax Payable
Advances from customers

31.3.24 31.3.23
£ £

4,323,119 4,965,282
9,534 16,411
1,207,885 2,874,646
73,326 449
649,607 193,482
6,263,471 8,050,270
967 -
244,492 -
245,459 -
6,508,930 8,050,270

31324 31.3.23

£ £

880,458 597,217
54,616 52,506
78,185 69,816
- 285,692
1,846,172 3,107,383
7,173,712 21,053,944
66,828 200,564
37,612 -
10,137,583 25,367,122

*The Company entered into an agreement dated 10th September 2021, to acquire MyHotelshop GmbH. Purchase

consideration included deferred consideration of GBP 450,610 and contingent consideration of GBP 720,975. For

the acquisition of MyhotelshopGmbH, the Company might have to pay an earn-out to the former shareholders as

part of sales consideration. The payment of earn out is contingent on certain performance obligation as at the date of

acquisition. The same has been satisfied and fully paid partly during the previous and partly during the current year.

#0n 20 December 2023 it was agreed by the Company and the Holding Company (“Shareholder”) that £ 15,022,848
being the outstanding amount owed by the company to the shareholder under the loan agreements be converted into

equity share capital. Also refer note 14.

Page 23
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

13.

14.

16.

CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Allotted, issued and fully paid:

Number: Class: Nominal 31.3.24 31.3.23
value: £ £
141 Ordinary share capital £1 141 135
RESERVES
Retained Share
earnings premium Totals
£ £ £
At 1 April 2023 4,393,940 18,632,610 23,026,550
Profit for the year 197,532 - 197,532
Bonus share issue - 15,022,486 15,022,486
At 31 March 2024 4,591,472 33,655,096 38,246,568

On 20 December 2023 it was agreed by the Company and the Holding Company (“‘Shareholder”) that £ 15,022,486
being the outstanding amount owed by the company to the shareholder under the loan agreements be converted into
equity share capital. Accordingly, the Company issued and allotted 6 ordinary shares of nominal value £ 1 each at a
consideration of £ 2,503,747 per Ordinary Share.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amount for each category of financial instrument is as follows:

2024 2023
£ £
Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost
Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost 7,472,802 8,253,866
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 9,978,533 25,114,052

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade debtors and other debtors.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade creditors, other creditors and accrual for goods and
services.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The company has taken advantage of an exemption available under FRS102 not to disclose transactions with group
undertakings.

Page 24 continued...




RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

17. CONTROLLING PARTY
The immediate parent undertaking is RateGain Travel Technologies Limited, a company incorporated in India. The
Company is controlled by RateGain Travel Technologies Limited by virtue of its 100% ownership of RateGain
Technologies UK Limited.
The parent undertaking of largest group for which consolidated accounts are prepared is RateGain Travel

Technologies Limited, a company incorporated in India. Consolidated accounts are available from the registrar of
Companies, Plot 3,4,5, Prius Global, 4th Floor, Tower A, Sector 125, Noida, Uttar Pradesh 201301

18. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

During the year the Company had share-based payment arrangements as follows:

|

Type of arrangement Employee Stock Appreciation Rights (ESARs 2022)

| Date of grant 9 June 2022

| Number granted 10,667
Maximum term 4 years
Settlement type Equity shares of Parent Company
Vesting conditions Options granted typically vest 10% after one year anniversary of the -

grant date, then 20% in second year followed by 30% in next year and
40 % in last year.

|
| The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options during the year are as follows:
\
|

March 2024 March 2023
Weighted Weighted
average exercise average exercise
Number price Number price

(£) (£

Outstanding at beginning of year 10,667 - - -
Granted during the period - =

Forfeited during the period - - - -

Exercised during the period - - = -

Expired during the period - - - -

Outstanding at end of year 10,667 - 10,667 -

Exercisable at end of year - -

The fair value of each share option granted was measured using the Black Scholes model.
The total expense recognised during the year in respect of share-based payments totalled £ 2,855 (March 2023 - £
2,653). Liabilities arising from share-based payments transactions totalled £ 2,855 (March 2023 - £ 2,653).

19. PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES

Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged to make them comparable with the current year figures.

) ‘l continued...




RateGain Technologies Limited

Trading and Profit and Loss Account

for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

Sales

Cost of sales
Other direct costs
Hosting, Proxy and Data charge

GROSS PROFIT

Expenditure

Social security

Pensions

Staff Welfare

Office Maintenance
Employee stock option expenses
Postage & Courier fee
Travelling

Fringe Benefit Tax

IT & Telecom

Provision for doubtful debts
Sales & marketing expenses
Sundry expenses

Salaries and Wages

Balance written off
Membership and Subscription
Legal and Professional fees
Audit fees

Foreign exchange losses

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Consultancy Fees

Finance costs
Interest on Loan

NET PROFIT

31324

12,770,289

4,948,424

£

24,525,024

17,718,713

158,638
29,063
34,571

1,994
2,855
766
154,141
1,432

173,845

519,727

470,509
37,184

1,779,937

347,555
1,473,272
5,000
440,409
11,033
4,828

14,227

6,806,311

5,660,986

1,145,325

880,477

264,848

31.3.23
£ £

16,366,710

9,399,996

3,518,533

12,918,529

3,448,181

87,970
24,194
25,624
244
2,653

1,891

256,063
279,885
303,349
191,822
806,000
775
212,507
321,524
5,000
(713,864)
14,001
2,915

77,606

1,900,159

1,548,022

517,895

1,030,127
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To

RateGain Technologies Inc,
5960 Berkshire Ln,

6th floor, Dallas, TX 75225.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of RateGain Technologies Inc. (the
“Company”), which comprise the separate balance sheet as of March 31, 2024, and separate related
statement of income, separate stakeholder’s equity and separate cash flow for the year then ended and
related notes to financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respect, the separate
financial position of the company as of March 31, 2024, and the separate results of the operations and its
separate cash flow for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in “Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of financial statements” section of our report, we are required to be
independent of the company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit reports. We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financials statements that are from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate that raise substantial doubt about the company ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit report that include
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance but not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect material misstatements
resulting from fraud which is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion and
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation or the override of internal control. Misstatements, include
omissions are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgement made by reasonable user based on financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financials statement whether due to
fraud and error, and design and perform audit procedure responsive to those risk. Such procedure
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosure in financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedure
that are appropriate in circumstances, but not for purpose of expressing opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of significant
accounting policies used and reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluate overall presentation of financials statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are condition or events, considered in aggregate that
raise substantial doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of audit, significant audit findings and certain related internal control that we
identified during the audit.

kb T

Subhajit Guha, CPA

For P&G ASSOCIATES, PLLC

Public Accounting Firm

Firm Registration Number: 5000066
Date: 07/16/2024



RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise

stated)

Particulars

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivables
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Property and Equipment, Net
ROU Asset

Intangible Assets, Net
Investment

Other Non Current Assets
Deferred Tax Asset

Total Non- Current Assets
Total Assets

Liabilities & Stockholder's Equity

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payables

Lease Liability

Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Lease Liability

Other Non Current Liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Stockholder's Equity
Common Stock

Additional Paid in capital
Retained Earnings

Total Stockholder's Equity

Total Liabilities & Stockholder's Equity

Note

==

ARe=T0

M

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

13,992,612 2,303,309
3,644,039 4,320,950
8,275,885 11,486,050

25,912,536 18,110,809

171,129 237,430
83,036 174,027
2,203,547 2,846,732
32,273,416 32,273,416
161,582 77,094
953,353 721,618
35,846,063 36,330,317
61,758,599 54,441,126
259,303 502,312
97,577 104,374
5,422,846 3,758,866
5,779,726 4,365,552
- 93,280

- 606

. 93,886
5,779,726 4,459,438
100 100

41,943,638 41,943,638

14,035,135 8,037,950

55,978,873 49,981,688

61,758,599 54,441,126

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Director: B. Chopra
Date: 16th July 2024




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.

Statement of Income for the year ended March 31, 2024

(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note
Revenue
Sale of Services 0

Other Income
Total Revenue

Operating Expenses

Salary and Benefits P
General and Administrative expenses Q
Depreciation and Amortization G, H I

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income

Interest Expenses R

- Profit Before tax

w2

Tax Expenses/(Income)

Profit After tax
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
For RateGain Technologies Inc, USA

/@/ Zechn

Dtr_egér: B. Chopra

Date: 16th July 2024

\‘\‘
Q /(') N

D/‘.‘\U_ﬁ\f'\» ) I',-I

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

19,507,990 18,906,172
377,230 3,991
19,885,220 18,910,163
6,439,254 5,755,721
5,528,627 5,723,676
808,128 1,491,164
12,776,009 12,970,561
7,109,211 5,939,602
6,483 10,823
7,102,728 5,928,779
1,105,543 (651,516)
5,997,185 6,580,295




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.

Statement of Stockholder's Equity
(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

. Additional Paid Retained Stockholder's
Particulars Common Stock| i . p
in Capital Earnings Equity

Balance as on March 31, 2022 100 25,916,020 1,457,655 27,373,775
Changes during the Year - 16,027,618 - 16,027,618
Net Income for the year - - 6,580,295 6,580,295
Balance as on March 31, 2023 100 41,943,638 8,037,950 49,981,688
[Net Income for the year - - 5,997,185 5,997,185
Balance as on March 31, 2024 100 41,943,638 14,035,135 55,978,873

Stockholders equity consists of common stock, additional paid in capital and retained earnings. The Corporation is authorized to issue one
class of stock designated "Common Stock." The Corporation is authorized to issue and has issued 100 Shares. All stocks of the
Corporation has par value of §1 per share. All stocks are issued to Rategain Technologies Limited, a UK company.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Rate%\Vlnﬂles Inc, USA

eChn
Dlrecmk;._IV;Chopra A « C
Date: 16th July 2024 ra"




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.

Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net Profit before taxes

Depreciation and Amortization

Interest Expense

Provision for Doubtful debts (gain)/loss

Bad Debts Written off

Changes In Operating Assets And Liabilities
Decrease/(Increase) In Accounts Receivable
Decrease In Other Current Assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Other non Current Assets
(Decrease)/Increase In Accounts Payable
(Decrease)/Increase in Other Current Liabilities

Tax Paid
Net Cash Generated By Operating Activities

Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Property and Equipment
Investment in subsidiary companies

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities

Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from Additional Paid-in Capital
Payment of Lease Liabilities

[nterest On Lease Liability

Net Cash Used By Financing Activities

Net Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents

Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beginning Of Year
Cash And Cash Equivalents At End Of Year (Note D)

Cash flow statements have been prepared using Indirect method as specified in US GAAP.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

7,102,728 5,928,779
808,128 1,491,164
6,483 10,823

917 (616,989)
227,631 1,679,761

448,368 (1,328,855)
3,210,165 290,116
(83,596) 21,321
(243,009) 47,552

391,660 (4,767,957)

(65,569) (12,030)

11,803,906 2,743,685

(8,543) (21,257)

. (17,582,368)

(8,543) (17,603,625)
- 16,027,619

(100,077) (93,651)

(6,483) (10,823)
(106,560) 15,923,145
11,688,803 1,063,205
2,303,809 1,240,604
13,992,612 2,303,809



RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note A NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Note B

The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of RateGain Technologies Limited, UK and its ultimate holding company is RateGain Travel
Technologies Limited("RateGain"), a SaaS company registered in India. RateGain is listed in the stock exchanges in India.

The Company is engaged in the business of providing data as a service, distribution and market technologies to travel and hospitality

sector on a SaaS platform.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies are detailed below:

| Basis of accounting

2

[*8]

4

w

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States of America (US GAAP) to reflect the financial position and results of operations of the Company.

The financial statements are presented for the year ended March 31, 2024. All amounts are stated in United States Dollars, unless
specified otherwise.

Use of Estimate

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The management's estimates for realization of
deferred tax assets and liabilities, determination of useful lives for property and equipment, provision for doubtful debts, allowance for
chargebacks, discounts and rebates, and estimation relating to unsettled transactions and events at the balance sheet date represent
certain of these particularly sensitive estimates. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates'. Revisions in accounting estimates are recognized
prospectively in the current and future periods.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of all cash accounts which are not subject to withdrawal restrictions or penalties and all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value
because of the short maturities of those financial instruments. Cash balances in bank accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation up to specified sum for each insured bank for each account per depositor. Cash balances in cxcess of the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation and similar insurance coverage are subject to the usual banking risks associated with funds in excess of

Revenue Recognition
Revenue from Contracts with Customers is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers. Revenue is measured

at the transaction price (net of variable consideration) which is the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives,
performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specitied in the
contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable.

The Company derives its revenue from Distribution services. Distribution is an Al-led product to standardize content distribution. Tt
includes seamless connectivity between Hotels and their demand partners, including OTAs, GDS, and others, and communicates
availability, rates, inventory, and content to its customers.

Provision for Doubtful accounts

Accounts receivable is reported at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances. Management provides for
probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to valuation allowance based on its assessment of the status of
individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable.

The Company recognizes loss allowances for trade receivables with no significant financing component at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit loss ("ECL"). The changes (incremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using ECL model, are recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit and loss.



RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1
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Property and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, net, are recognized at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is generally computed using the

straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, as follows:

Estimated

Usetul Life
Asset Name No. of years
Furniture and Fixtures 4-7
Computer Equipment 2-3
Office Equipment 2-4
Production Equipment 1-5

Upon the retirement or sale of our property, plant and equipment, the cost and associated accumulated depreciation are removed from the
consolidated balance sheet, and the resulting gain or loss is reflected on the consolidated statement of operations. Maintenance and repair
expenditures are expensed as incurred while major improvements that increase the functionality, output or expected life of an asset are
capitalized and depreciated ratably over the identified useful life.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
Estimated
Useful Life
Asset Name No. of years
Customer relationship 10-13 years
Software 1-3 years
Leases

For any new or modified lease, the Company, at the inception of the contract, determines whether a contract is or contains a lease. The
Company records right-of-use ("ROU") assets and lease obligations for its finance and operating leases, which are initially recognized
based on the discounted future lease payments over the term of the lease. If the rate implicit in the Company's leases is not easily
determinable, the Company's applicable incremental borrowing rate is used in calculating the present value of the sum of the lease
payments. Lease term is defined as the non-cancelable period of the lease plus any options to extend or terminate the lease when it is
reasonably certain that the Company will exercise the option. The Company has elected not to recognize ROU asset and lease obligations
for its short-term leases, which are defined as leases with an initial term of 12 months or less.

Income Taxes

In accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC Topic
740 "Income Taxes", income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary difterences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date. The deferred tax asset is reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
assets will not be realized. All deferred tax assets and liabilities, along with any related valuation allowance, are classified as noncurrent
on the balance sheet.

Fair Value Measurements and Financial Instruments

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value in the financial statements are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated with
the inputs used to measure their fair value. Hierarchical levels which are directly related to the amount of subjectivity assaciated with the
inputs to the valuation of these assets or liabilities are as follows:

Level | - unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access as of the
measurement date.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are directly observable for the asset or liability or indirectly
observable through corroboration with observable market data

Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability only used when there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

This hierarchy requires the Company to use observable market data, when available, and to minimize the use of unobservable inputs
when determining fair value

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, Investment, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities. The estimated fair value of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts of these instruments. None of these instruments are held for trading purposes.




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Note C

Note D

Note E

Commitments and Contingencies
Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments litigations, fines, penalties, and other sources are recorded when it is

probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated Legal costs incurred in connection with loss
contingencies are expensed as incurred. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are
neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Recently issued accounting standards not vet adopted
We have reviewed the recent accounting pronouncements and concluded they are either not applicable to the business or no material

effect is expected on the financial statements as a result of future adoption.

Stock-Based Compensation
Stock-based compensation is recognized as an expense in the financial statements based on the fair value of the award. The Company
recognizes compensation expense based on estimated grant-date fair value using the following variables:

Valuation and Amortization Method — The Company estimates the fair value of stock options granted using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model and a single option award approach. This fair value is then amortized ratably over the requisite service periods of the
awards, which is generally the vesting period of four years.

Expected Term — The Company’s expected term represents the period that the Company’s stock- based awards are estimated to be
outstanding and was determined using the simplified method allowed under ASC 718-10, Compensation — Stock Compensation (ASC
718-10).

Expected Volatility — The Parent Company is a newly listed company and it doesn’t have a listed peer as of the valuation date which are
focused exclusively on the segment in which the Parent Company operate, therefore for the purpose of calculating the volatility,
Volatility of the Nifty IT Index is considered.

Expected Dividend — Expected dividend yield was not considered in the option pricing formula since the Parent Company does not pay
dividends and has no current plans to do so in the future.

Risk-Free Interest Rate — The risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes valuation method is based on the Central Government
bond rate in effect at the time of grant for periods corresponding with the expected term of the options.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash equivalents and
accounts receivable. By their nature, all accounts receivable involve risk including the credit risk of non-performance by counter parties.
In management's opinion, as of March 31, 2024 there was no significant risk of loss in the event of non-performance of the counter
parties to these cash equivalents and accounts receivable.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents, include the following:

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
3 b
Cash at Bank 13,992,612 2,303,809
Tatal 13,992,612 2,303,809
The company has no restricted cash balance as at March 31, 2024
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, NET
Accounts receivable, net include the following:
As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
b )
Accounts receivable 3,644,956 4,645,031
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts 917) (324,081)
Total 3,644,039 4,320,950




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Nates to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note F OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
$ $
Prepaid Expenses and Advances 288,250 320,355
Accrued Interest 60,234 -
Related Party Receivables* (Refer Note T) 7,927,401 11,165,695
Total 8,275,885 11,486,050
* Related party receivables are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
Note G PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property and equipment, net, comprises of
Particulars Tine Arts

Furniture | Computer

Production

and Fixtures | Equipment Ofien Rawiproens Equipment fir;(;’)l;;ciablc) it
Gross carrying value: .
Balance as at | April 2023 54,128 74,703 87,216 2,405,434 55,600 2,677,081
Additions u 4,209 4334 - 8,543
Balance as at 31 March 2024 54,128 - 78,912 91,550 2,405,434 55,600 2,685,624
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at | April 2023 15,728 56,516 62,004 2,305,403 - 2,439,651
Depreciation Expense 6,992 11,028 13,602 43,222 = 74,844
Balance as at 31 March 2024 22,720 67,544 75,606 2,348,625 - 2,514,495
Net carrying value:
Balance as at 31 March 2023 38,400 18,187 25,212 100,031 55,600 237,430
Balance as at 31 March 2024 31,408 11,368 15,944 56,809 55,600 171,129

Note H ROU ASSET, NET

As at

Particulars March 31,2024
$

Gross carrying value:
Balance as at | April 2023 302,062
Additions "
Balance as at 31 March 2024 302,062
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at | April 2023 128,035
Depreciation Expense . 90,991
Balance as at 31 March 2024 219,026
Net carrying value:
Balance as at 31 March 2024 83,036
Balance as at 31 March 2023 174,027




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 1

INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

Note J

Particulars Softwares Customer
i . Total
relationship

Gross carrying value:
Balance as at | April 2023 4,540,656 4,875,000 9,415,656
Adjustments - (892) (892)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 4,540,656 4,874,108 9,414,764
Accumulated ammortization:
Balance as at 1 April 2023 4,307,377 2,261,547 6,568,924
Ammortization Expense 233,279 409,014 642,293
Balance as at 31 March 2024 4,540,656 2,670,561 7,211,217
Net carrying value:
Balance as at 31 March 2023 233,279 2,613,453 2,846,732
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - 2,203,547 2,203,547
INVESTMENT

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

3 S

Investment in BCV Social LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary 17,355,069 17,355,069
company ;
Investment in Rategain Adara. Inc 14,918,347 14,918,347
Total 32,273,416 32,273,416

The Company has entered into Asset Purchase Agreement (APA) dated January 2, 2023 with Adara Inc. and Fortis Advisors LLC to
acquire business of Adara Inc., a leader in data collection and management in the tavel and hospitality space throgh its subsidiary

RateGain Adara Inc.

Note K OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Note L

As at As aft

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

$ S

Property Deposits 25,524 49,680

Prepaid Expenses 136,058 27414

Total 161,582 77,094
ACCOUNTS PAYABLES

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

3 3

Accounts Payables 259,303 502,312

Total 259,303 502,312

Note M OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

3 S

Related Party Payables* (Refer Note T) 742,900 2,970,363

Deferred Revenue 2,640,600 90,396

Accrued Expenses 667,867 594,753

Sales Tax Payable 957 957

Others 1,370,522 102,397

Total 5,422,846 3,758,866

* Related party payables are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note N OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
$ S

Deferred Rent - 606
Total - 606/

Note O SALE OF SERVICES

The following tables

Region

For the year ended
March 31,2024
$

For the year ended
March 31,2023
5

Sale of services provided in USA

19,507,990

18,906,172

Revenue disaggregated by timing of recognition:

Tor the year ended
March 31,2024

For the year ended
March 31,2023

3 8
Sale of Services over a period of time 19,507,990 18,906,172
Total revenue by timing of recognition 19,507,990 18,906,172

Note P SALARY & BENEFITS

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

3 3
Salaries, bonus and other benefits 6,018,424 5,229,600
Contribution to provident and other funds 103,917 94,705
Staff welfare expenses 293,743 359,316
Employee stock option expense 23,170 72,100
Total 6,439,254 5,755,721

Note Q GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year ended| For the year ended
i March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Particulars
b $
Demand Partner fees 822,773 863,284
Communication charges 753,950 788,814
Fees and subscription 201,313 343,143
Software licenses 376,572 349,952
Rent (Short term lease) 399,523 270,144
Contractual manpower cost 422 837 324,643
Bad Debts net of provision 227,631 1,062,772
Insurance 92,149 130,625
Legal and professional fees 352,908 378,886
Advertising and sales promotion 199,200 195,554
Training and recruitment expenses 24,816 36,711
Travelling And Conveyance 120,126 106,703
Rates and taxes 24,533 20,384
Intercompany recharge expenses 1,157,337 529,227
Foreign Exchange Loss (Net) 60,688 2,623.00
Bank charges 29,678 47,682
Miscellaneous expenses 262,593 272,029
Total 5,528,627 5,723,676




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note R

Note S

Note T

INTEREST EXPENSES
For the year ended| For the year ended
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
$ N
Interest on Lease liabilities 6,483 10,823
Total 6,483 10,823
TAX EXPENSES

For the year ended March 31, 2024, the company will file federal and state tax returns as per regulations applicable in the United States.

The components for the provision for income taxes are as follows:

For the year ended| For the year ended

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
3 3

Current taxes income (1,337,283) (70,102)
Deffered Taxes expense 231,740 721,618
Total (1,105,543) 651,516

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related Party Relationships

Related Party

Nature of relation

RateGain Travel Technologies Limited (India)

Ultimate Parent and Ultimate Controlling

RateGain Technologies Limited (UK)

Parent Company

BCV Social LLC Subsidiary|
RateGain Adara Inc Subsidiary|
RateGain Technologies Spain §.L. Fellow Subsidiary
MyHotelShop, Germany Fellow Subsidiary
Rategain Technologies LLC (Dubai) Fellow Subsidiary

13




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.

Naotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Transaction with Related Party

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Expenses incurred on behalf of 3 S
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK 210,569 103,308
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited 371,393 612,871
BCV Sacial LLC 64,351 527,866
MyHotelShop, Germany 127,242 64,192

Amount as on 31st]
March 2023

Amount as on 31st
March 2023

Lxpense incurred on our behalf by b S
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK 1,522,197 662,918
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited 2,130,547 1,582,717
BCV Social 604,252 635,821
MyHotelShop, Germany 319,509 262,380

Amount as on 31st]

Amount as on 31st

March 2024 March 2023
Customer realization on behalf of 5 3
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK 1,349,670 141,609
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited 119,849 105,394
RateGain Technologies LLC 1,674 -

Amount as on 31st
March 2024

Amount as on 31st
March 2023

Customer realization on our behalf of b M

RateGain Technologies Limited, UK 304,155 51,979

Balances with Related Party
Transaction i AS Rt

Name of Entity March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Type

$ S

BCV Social LLC Other Current 7,544,141 9,582,042
Assets

RateGain Adara Inc Other Current 349,720 1,581,653
Assels

RateGain Travel Technologies Limited,India B Coe 33,340 B
Assets

MyHotelShop, Germany O.lhc.r .C;urrent 390,455 198,188
Liabilities

Rategain Technologies Limited, UK chc_r -C_urrenl 352,445 2,718,360
Liabilities

A T o1 T bl Tinitted ldty, (|S0es Curtent ; 53,815
Liabilities




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note U STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Employee Stock Appreciation Rights (ESARs) 2022
The Scheme has been adopted by the Board of Directors of the Ultimate Parent Company (Rategain Travel Technologies Ltd
incorporated and listed in India), on 11 February 2022, read with the Special Resolution passed by its Members of the Ultimate Parent
Company on 19 March 2022 and shall be deemed to come into force with effect from 19 March 2022 being the date of approval by its
Members. The maximum number of SAR Units of the Parent Compnay that can be granted to any eligible Employee during any one year
shall not be equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital of the Parent Company at the time of grant. The Committee may decide to
arant such number of SAR Units equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital to any eligible Employee as the case may be, subject to
the applicable laws. Vesting period shall commence from the date of grant subject to a minimum of | (One) year from the grant date and
a maximum period 4 (Four) years or such other period from the grant date, at the discretion of and in the manner prescribed by the
Committee, provided further that, in the event of death or permanent incapacity of a Grantee, the minimum vesting period of one year
shall not be applicable.
The Actual vesting would be subject to the continued employment of the Grantee.

The following table summarizes the option activity under the Plan for the year ended March 31, 2024:

Particulars No.of options Exzru;e Price
Outstanding as on Ist April 2023 227,500 -
Granted during the year 129,389 =
Options exercised (19,313)
Vested during the year - -
Lapsed during the year (189,437) -
Qutstanding as on 31 March 2024 148,139 =

The Company recorded the stock based Compensation Expenses of § 23,170 (2023: $ 72,100) related to outstanding Stock Options for
the year ended 31 March 2024 included in Salary & Benefits. Options Granted typically vest 10% after one year anniversary of the grant
date, then 20% in second year followed by 30% in next year and 40 % in last year.

The fair values are measured based on the Black-Scholes-Merton model on grant date.

Note V RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Company's future results of operations involve several risks and uncertainties. Factors that could affect the Company's future
operating results and cause actual results to vary materially from expectations include, competitive factors, including but not limited to
pricing pressures; deterioration in general economic conditions; the Company’s ability to effectively manage operating costs and increase
operating efficiencies; declines in revenues, technological and market changes; the ability to attract and retain qualified employees and
the Company's ability to execute on its business plan.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for the accounts receivables is minimum. The average credit period to settle accounts receivables
is about 30 days to 60 days.

Note W SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated till the date on which is the date the financial statements were issued. No material subsequent

event has been noted.

For RateGain Technologies Inc, USA
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Rategain Technologies LLC

DIRECTORS REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The directors present their report together with the audited special purpose financial statements of
Rategain Technologies LLC (the "Company”) for the year ended 31 March 2024,

Principal activity

RateGain Technologies LLC, UAE (RateGain UAE), is a wholly owned subsidiary of RateGain UK. It was
incorporated as a Limited Liability Company on November 28, 2022, under the laws of UAE. RateGain
UAE is primarily engaged in data processing, hosting, and related activities, including the operation and
management of web portals and websites that utilize search engines to generate and maintain extensive
databases of internet addresses and content in an easily searchable format.

Results and appropriations

The results of the company for the year are set out in the accompanying special purpose financial
statements. No dividends were declared during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the special purpose financial statements

The Company law requires the directors to prepare special purpose financial statements for each financial
year, which present fairly the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company. In
preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently.

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

« state whether International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the special purpose financial statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Company will continue in business.

The directors have confirmed that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the
special purpose financial statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the special
purpose financial statements comply with the regulations of Sharjah Media City Free Zone (SHAMS) in
United Arab Emirates. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Auditor

The auditor, HAA Auditing, has indicated its willingness to continue in office and a resolution concerning its
re-appoi r%will be proposed at the Annual Meeting of the Shareholder.

A

Director
16 July 2024
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HAA Auditing

Auditors & Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT
To the shareholder of Rategain Technologies LLC, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying special purpose financial statements of Rategain Technologies LLC, (the
“Company”) which comprise of the financial position as at 31" March, 2024, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows, for the year then
ended, and a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory notes,

In our opinion, the special purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company, as at 31" March, 2024, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for apinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the audit of the Special
purpose financial statements section of our report.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements as per Code of Ethics for
professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”) that are relevant to our audit of the special purpose financial
statements in United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion:

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Special purpose financial

statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the special purpose financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of special purpose financial statements that are free ‘from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the special purpose financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repor}p P B‘és%
v AU
# 5 o~ h"“-\.\/_ ,_’__.‘\
Sy \’1 A

HAA Auditing: Office No 77, Tanvi Business Centre, Deira, Dubai, UAE
Email : info@haaauditing.com




HAA Auditing

Auditors & Accountants

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special purpose financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that

includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these special purpose

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error; to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and to obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. '

e Obtainan understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in arder to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the special purpose financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the special purpose financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the special purpose financial statements
represent the underlying transaction events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governarce regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these speci —,p?g):pp‘s_@

financial statements based on our audit. % pi !”52;";;?}\
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirement

As required by the provisions of Sharjah Media City Free Zone and relevant applicable laws in U.AE, we

further confirm that,

i.  we have obtained all the information and explanations which are required for the purpose of our

audit;

ii.  thespecial purpose financial statements as at March 31, 2024 of Rategain Technologies LLC, include
in all material aspects, the application requirements of the provisions of applicable laws in U.A.E;

iiil.  proper financial records have been kept by the Company;

iv.  the contents of the Director’s report relating to these special purpose financial statements are in
agreement with the Company’s financial records;

v.  the Company has not purchased or invested in any shares during the year ended March 31, 2024;

vi.  the special purpose financial statements of the Company reflects all the disclosures relating to
material related party transactions and the terms under which they are conducted;

Hussain Ali Abdulla Alabdouli

For H A A Auditing
Registered Auditor
Audit License No: 845

Dubai, United Arab Emirates

Date: July 16, 2024

HAA Auditing: Office No 77, Tanvi Business Centre, Deira, Dubai, UAE
Emall : info@haaauditing.com



Rategain Technologies LLC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade Receivables

Other receivables

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Stated capital
Accumulated profit
Statutory reserves
Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Trade payables
Other payables
Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

These financial statement have been approved by the Board of Director on

behalf by.

AED AED
Notes 2024 2023
3 2,733,620 100,000
4 2,529,045 =
5 358,904 g
5,621,569 100,000
5,621,569 100,000
6 100,000 100,000
1,831,775 -
50,000 -
1,981,775 100,000
7 4,094 w
8 3,635,700 .
3,639,794 =
5,621,569 100,000
16 July 2024

and signed on its

The notes set out on page 9 to 20 form an integral part of these special purpose financial statements. Independent

auditor's report on page 2 to 4.
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Rategain Technologies LLC

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

2024 from 28 -11-22

to 31.3-2023
Notes AED AED
Revenue
Revenue from operations 9 8,658,266 -
8,658,266 -
Expenses
Employee benefits 10 1,752,539 -
Professional fees 11 4,272,567 -
Other expenses 12 613,575 .
6,638,681
Profit before taxation 2,019,585
Transfer to statutory reserve 50,000 .
Taxation 137,810 -
Profit for the year 1,831,775 .
Other comprehensive income for the year -
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,831,775 -

The notes set out on page 9 to 20 form an integral part of these special purpose financial statements. Independent

auditor’s repo w 2t04.

!J
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Rategain Technologies LLC

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The notes set out on page 9 to 20 form an integral part of these special purpose financial statements.

Independent auditor's report on page 2 to 4. g/
n
l|'

AED AED
from 28 -11-22
Notes 4 to 31-3-2023
|
| Profit before taxation 2,019,585 -
|
‘ Cash flow from operation activities
Movement in Trade receivables 4 (2,529,045) 2
| Movement in Other receivables 5 (358,904) -
| Movement in Trade payables 7 4,094 -
Movement in Other payables 8 3,497,890 -
Net cash used in operating activities 2,633,620 -
Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of share capital 6 - 100,000
Net cash generated from financing activities . 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year/period 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year/period 3 2,733,620 100,000

Page 7



Rategain Technologies LLC

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Opening Balance as on 28th November, 2022
Issued during the period

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income for the period
Balance at 31 March 2023

Transferred during the year

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 March 2024

Stated Accumulated Statutory
Capital Profit Reserve Total
AED AED AED AED
100,000 100,000
100,000 - - 100,000
50,000 50,000
- 1,831,775 - 1,831,775
100,000 1,831,775 50,000 1,981,775

The notes set out on page 9 to 20 form an integral part of these special purpose financial statements. Independent

auditor's report on, V 4,
l f{'\
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Rategain Technologies LLC

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

21

(3

(b)

(c)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Rategain Technologies LLC (the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated on 28 November 2022 under the rules
and regulations of Sharjah Media City - Free Zone Authority (Shams) Authority and Licensing Regulations 2017.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of RateGain Technologies Limited (the "Parent Company” or “Shareholder”), a
company incorporated in United Kingdom. The Ultimate Shareholder is RateGain Travel Technologies Limited registered in
Inda (the “Ultimate Shareholder”).

The Company's registered office address is Sharjah Media City, Sharjah, UAE and governed by the rules and regulations of
Sharjah Media City - Free Zone Authority (Shams) Autharity and Licensing Regulations 2017.

The Company's software solutions allow hospitality businesses to engage with travellers and help revenue, distribution and
marketing departments to drive revenue by providing accurate, real-time and meaningful insights.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNITNG POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these special purpose financial statements are set out below.
Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS"), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and Sharjah Media City - Free Zone Authority
(Shams) Authority and Licensing Regulations 2024 amended.

These are the separate special purpose financial statements (*financial statements”) of the Company only and have been
prepared to determine the results of the Company only. The Company has prepared financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2024. The ultimate parent Company prepares consolidated financial statements in accordance with Ind As,
incorporating the separate financial statements of the Company. As permitted by IFRS, the Company has availed the
exemption under IFRS for not preparing consolidated financial statements and hence no consolidated financial statements
have been prepared for the Company. The consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company are available at its
registered address, Plot 3,4,5, Prius Global, 4th Floor, Tower A, Sector 125, Noida, Uttar Pradesh 201301

Basis of measurement

The special purpose financial statements are prepared on the going concern principle and using the historical cost basis,
except where stated otherwise.

Functional and presentation currency

The special purpose financial statements are presented in AED which is the Company's functional currency.

Page 9



Rategain Technologies LLC

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

241

(d)

(e)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNITNG POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)
Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of special purpose financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those eslimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

(i Determination of functional currency

The determination of the functional currency of the Company is critical since recording of transactions and exchange
differences arising there on are dependent on the functional currency selected. As described above, the directors have
considered those factors described therein and have determined that the functional currency of the Company is the United
Arab Emirates dirham ("AED").

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Company uses judgements in making these assumptions an selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Company's past histary, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
For details of the key assumptions and inputs used, refer to the individual notes addressing financial assets.

New and amended standards and interpretations

New standards, interpretations and amendments adopted from 1 January 2023

Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases relating to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The amendment clarifies how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions that salisfy the
requirements in IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale.

Amendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements relating to Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
Current

The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping companies determine whether, in the
statement of financial position, debt and other liabilities with an uncertain settlement date should be classified as current (due
or potentially due to be settled within one year) or non-current.

The amendments also defer the effective date of the January 2020 amendments by one year, so that enfities would be
required to apply the amendment for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements relating to Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

The amendment clarifies how conditions with which an entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period
affect the classification of a liability.

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to Supplier

Finance Arrangements
The amendments add disclosure requirements, and 'signposts’ within existing disclosure requirements, that ask entities to

provide qualitative and quantitative information about supplier finance arrangements.
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Rategain Technologies LLC

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNITNG POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control of the goods are transferred lo the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
entitled in exchange for those goods and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations.

Revenue on service is recognised on fulfilment of performance abligation.

2.2 Financial instruments

Initial measurement of financial instruments

Under IFRS 9 all financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or
financial liability nat at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. This requirement is consistent with IAS 39.

Financial assets: subsequent measurement

Financial asset classification and measurement is an area where many changes have been introduced by IFRS 9. Consistent
with IAS 39, the classification of a financial asset is determined at initial recognition, however, if certain conditions are met, an
asset may subsequently need to be reclassified.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all assets within the scope of IFRS § are measured at:

- amortised cost;

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); or

- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
The FVTOCI classification is mandatory for certain debt instrument assets unless the option to FVTPL (‘the fair value option’)
is taken. Whilst for equity investments, the FVTOCI classification is an election. The requirements for reclassifying gains or
losses recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) are different for debt and equity investments. For debt instruments
measured at FVTOCI, interest income (calculated using the effective interest rate method), foreign currency gains or losses
and impairment gains or losses are recognised directly in profit or loss. The difference between cumulative fair value gains or
losses and the cumulative amounts recognised in profit or loss is recognised in OCI until derecagnition, when the amounts in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss. This contrasts with the accounting treatment for investments in equity instruments
designated at FVTOCI under which only dividend income is recognised in profit or loss with all other gains and losses
recognised in OCI and there is no reclassification on derecagnition.

(i) Debtinstruments
A debt instrument that meets the following two conditions must be measured at amortised cost unless the asset is designated
at FVTPL under the fair value aption:

- Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets -
collect their contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the assets prior to their contractual maturity to realise changes in fe
value).

- Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows th
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument that meets the cash flow characteristics test and is not designated at FVTPL under the fair value option
must be measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose abjective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and sell financial assets.

All other debt instrument assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The Company's financial assets measured at amartised cost comprise of cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
financial position. Cash and cash equivalents include depasits held at call with banks.
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NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNITNG POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.3 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets: subsequent measurement (Continued)

(i) Equily instruments
All equity investments in scope of IFRS 9 are measured at fair value in the statement of financial position, with value changes
recognised in profit or loss, except for those equity investments for which the entity has elected to present value changes in
aother comprehensive income.

The aption to designate an equity instrument at FVTOCI is available at initial recognition and is irrevocable. This designation
results in all gains and losses being presented in OCI except dividend income which is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: subsequent measurement

IFRS 9 doesn't change the basic accounting model for financial liabilities under 1AS 39. Two measurement categories continue
to exist: FVTPL and amortised cost. Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at FVTPL, and all other financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost unless the fair value option is applied.

Fair value option
IFRS 9 contains an option to designate a financial liability as measured at FVTPL if:

- doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an
‘accounting mismatch') that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases, or

- the liability is part or a group of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial liabilities that is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on that basis fo the entity's key management personnel.

Financial liabilities held for trading, ( e.g. derivative liabilities), as well as loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
that are designated at FVTPL under the fair value option, will continue to be measured at fair value with all changes being
recognised in profit or loss.

However, for all other financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL using the fair value option, IFRS 9 requires the amount of the
change in the liability's fair value atfributable to changes in the credit risk to be recognised in OCI with the remaining amount of

change in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless this treatment of the credit risk component creates or enlarges a
measurement mismatch. Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Company's financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise of other payables and borrowings in the statement of
financial position.

After initial recognition, other payables and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate ('EIR') method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Page 12



Rategain Technologies LLC

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNITNG POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.3 Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition
(a) Financial assefs

The Company derecagnises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of awnership of the asset to another party. If the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised barrowing for the proceeds received.

(b) Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.4 Impairment

(i) Impairment of financial assets
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss (ECL) on:
financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal lo lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at
12-month ECLs:

- bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has
not increased significantly since initial recagnition.

Loss allowances for intercompany receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLS, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
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Rategain Technologies LLC

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNITNG POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 Impairment (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is
exposed to credit risk.
Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash

shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.
Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have accurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- a breach of contract such as a default;
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;

- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVQC], the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCI.
White-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering

a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount
of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed each reparting year for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If such indicators exist, an impairment test is performed.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assel's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal ("FVLCD") and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows or CGUs.

Value in use is determined as the present value of the fulure cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or CGU. The
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Non-financial assets other than goodwill impaired in prior periods are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset or CGU is no longer impaired.
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NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNITNG POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Stated capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
2.6 Expenses recognition
All expenses are accounted for in profit or loss on the accrual basis.
2.7 Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax for current and priar periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect
of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.

Deferred tax

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is not recognised when it
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.

Tax expenses

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the year, except to the
extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different year, to other
comprehensive income.

2.8 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to AED at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to USD at the foreign exchange rate ruling at
that date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated to AED at
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair values were determined. Foreign currency differences arising on
retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.

2.9 Related party transactions

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Company if they have the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the Company or exercise significant influence over the Company in making financial and
operating decisions, ar vice versa, or where the Company is subject to common contral or common significant influence.
Related parties may be individual or other entities.
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NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNITNG POLICIES (CONTINUED)

210 Provisions

A pravision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. At the time of effective payment, the provision is deducted from the corresponding expenses. All

known risks at the reporting date are reviewed in detail and provision is made where necessary.

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AED AED
2024 2023
Cash at bank 2,733,620 100,000
4,  TRADE RECEIVABLES AED AED
2024 2023
Trade receivables 2,529,045 -
5. OTHER RECEIVABLES AED AED
2024 2023
VAT input 458 5
Amount due from related parties 358,447 2
358,904
6. STATED CAPITAL AED AED
2024 2023
Issued and fully paid
1,000 ordinary shares of AED 100 each 100,000 100,000
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NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

7. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables

8. OTHER PAYABLES

Unbilled revenue

Provision for Income Tax

Vat output

Amount due o related parties

The carrying amounts of other payables approximate their fair values and are denominated in AED.

9, REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Revenue from operations

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Salary and Wages

11. PROFESSIONAL FEES

Consulting Fees
Other Professional fees

12. OTHER EXPENSES

Cross Charge

Travelling cost

Bank charges

Net foreign exchange loss
Miscellaneous expense
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AED AED
2024 2023
4,094 -
AED AED
2024 2023
1,689,916 -
137,810
343 g
1,807,631
3,635,700
AED AED
from 28 -11-22
A4 to 31-3-2023
8,658,266 -
8,658,266 s
AED AED
from 28 -11-22
2024 to 31-3-2023
1,752,539 -
1,752,539
AED AED
from 28 -11-22
2024 to 31-3-2023
4,209,524
63,043 R
4,272,567 -
AED AED
from 28 -11-22
s to 31-3-2023
539,630 -
32,194 -
15,745 -
3,007 -
23,000 -
613,575 .
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13

131

13.2

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company in the normal course of business enters into transactions with other business enterprises that within the definition of
related party contained in the International Accounting Standard - 24. Related parties comprise the parent company, fellow
susdiaries, directors, comapanies under common ownership and/or common management control and associate as under:

Related Party Nature of relation

RateGain Travel Technologies Limited [Ultimate Holding Company
(India)

RateGain Technologies Limited (UK)  |Fellow Subsidiary

BCV Social LLC (US) Fellow Subsidiary

RateGain Technologies Inc.(US) Fellow Subsidiary

Rategain Adara Inc Fellow Subsidiary

MyhotelShop GMBH (Germany) Fellow Subsidiary

Transactions during the year

Expenses incurred on behalf of
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited
MyhotelShap GMBH

RateGain Adara Inc.

Expense incurred on our behalf by
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited
MyhotelShop GMBH

RateGain Adara Inc.

Customer realization on our hehalf of
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK
RateGain Technologies Inc.

Outstanding balances
Name of related parties Nature of balance

AED
2024

AED
from 28 -11-22
to 31-3-2023

1,088,255
61,842

405,184
1,727,295

344,519
4,192,779
85,291
1,728,175

212,923
6,147

AED
2024

AED
2023

Rategain Travel Technologies Limited Amaunt due to related parties

Rategain Adara Inc. Amount due to related parties

RateGain Technologies Inc Amount due from related parties
MyHatelshap Gmbh Amount due from related parties
RateGain Technolagies Limited Amount due from related parties
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Fair values

The Company's financial asset and liabilities includes cash and cash equivalents, ather payables and borrowings. The carrying
amounts of these other financial asset and liabilities approximate their fair values.

Assaciated risk

The Company's activiies expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise patential adverse effects on
the Company's financial performance.

Credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents that are neither past due nor impaired are placed with or entered into with reputable financial
institutions or companies with high credit rating risk and with no history of default.

The Company takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalenls, as well as credit exposures arising from outstanding and committed transactions
due from third parties. The Company s also exposed ta the risk that its assets held with counterparties and banks may not be
recoverable in the event of default by the parties concerned.

AED AED
2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 2,733,620 100,000
Trade receivables 2,529,045 -
Amount due from related parties 358,447 -
5,621,112 100,000

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet ils financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Company's
reputation.

The maturity profile of the financial liabilities is summarised as follows:

2024 2023
More than one ~ Within one  More than one
Financial Liabilities Within one Year Year Year Year
Trade payables 4,094 -
Amount due to related parties 1,807,631 -
1,811,725 - - =

Categories of financial instruments AED AED

2024 2023
Financial assets
Cash at bank 2,733,620 100,000
Trade receivables 2,529,045 -
Amount due from related parlies 358,447 -
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 4,094 -
Other payables 1,807,631 -
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18

19

20

Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for the shareholder and benefits for ather stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capilal struclure to reduce the
cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Company consisls of equity attributable ta equity holder, comprising of issued capital and accumulated
losses.

The Company actively and regularly reviews and manages ts capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher returns
that might be possible wilh higher levels of borrewings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. It
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and its review.

COMMITMENTS

The Company has no material commitment as at 31 March 2024,

CONTINGENCIES

The Company has no material litigation claims outstanding, pending or threatened against it, would could have a material adverse
effect on the Company's financial position or results of operation as at 31 March 2024.

HOLDING COMPANY

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of RateGain Technologies Limited (the “Parent Company” or "Shareholder’), a
company incorporated in United Kingdom. The Ullimate Shareholder is RateGain Travel Technologies Limited registered in Inda
(the "Ultimate Shareholder”). The consolidated financial stalements of the Parent Company are available at its registered address,
Plot 3,4,5, Prius Global, 4th Floor, Tower A, Sector 125, Noida, Uttar Pradesh 201301

GOING CONCERN

These special purpose financial statements have been prepared on the assumplion that Rategain Technologies LLC will cantinue
as a gaing concern, meaning it will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to realise assets and discharge

liabilities in the ordinary course of aperations. As at March 31, 2024, the Company had a positive net worth of AED 1,981,775 and
profit after tax of 1,831,775,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There have been no material events occuring after the date of statement of financial position that require adjustments ta, or
disclosure in, the special purpose financial statements.

PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES

The Company has started its operations from 28 November 2022, hence the previous year numbers are not comparable.
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